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PART I

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended

December 2Necember 28,
(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2013 2012
Revenues:
Product $481,436 $ 468,008
Service 230,066 210,390
Total revenues 711,502 678,398
Cost of revenues:
Product 298,534 294,925
Service 103,389 92,385
Total cost of revenues 401,923 387,310
Gross margin 309,579 291,088
Operating expenses:
Research and development 58,003 47,117
Selling, general and administrative 109,582 106,481
Total operating expenses 167,585 153,598
Operating earnings 141,994 137,490
Interest income 2,265 1,539

Interest expense (1,893 ) (866

)
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Earnings before taxes 142,366 138,163
Taxes on earnings 44,406 42,880
Net earnings $97,960 $ 95,283
Net earnings per share — basic $0.92 $ 0.87
Net earnings per share — diluted $0.91 $ 0.86

Shares used in the calculation of net earnings per share:
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic 105,986 109,298
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted 107,449 111,144

See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended
December 2DDecember 28,
(In thousands) 2013 2012
Net earnings $97.960 $ 95,283
Other comprehensive earnings (loss), net of tax:
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement benefit plans:
Amortization of prior service cost included in net periodic benefit cost, net of tax expense
of ($6) and ($5) 38 36
Amortization of net actuarial loss included in net periodic benefit cost, net of tax expense
of ($101) and ($132) 435 564
473 600
Unrealized gain on derivatives:
Increase in unrealized gain, net of tax expense of ($1,198) and ($106) 1,984 177
Reclassification adjustments, net of tax benefit/(expense) of ($131) and $285 219 475
2,203 (298
Currency translation adjustment 1,469 4916
Other comprehensive earnings 4,145 5,218

Comprehensive earnings $102,105 $ 100,501
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See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except par values)

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term investment

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $14,449 at
December 27, 2013 and $14,735 at September 27, 2013

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Deferred tax assets

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Product warranty

Deferred revenues

Advance payments from customers
Current maturities of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt
Other long-term liabilities

December 27,
2013

$971,193
73,981

708,226
561,802
172,875
118,272

2,606,349

321,005
226,955
236,925

$3,391,234

$ 176,860
309,106
48,666
389,029
153,233
56,250

1,133,144

425,000
133,501
1,691,645

September 27,
2013 M

$ 1,117,861
62,700

698,254
535,223
168,495
122,250

2,704,783

315,331
225,335
223,025

$ 3,468,474

$ 194,272
320,884
39,050
389,479
160,644
56,250

1,160,579

450,000
144,048
1,754,627
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Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)

Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock of $1 par value: 1,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding — —
Common stock of $1 par value: 189,000 shares authorized; 105,316 and 106,491

shares issued and outstanding at December 27, 2013 and at September 27, 2013,

respectively 105,316 106,491
Capital in excess of par value 638,079 637,084
Retained earnings 992,120 1,010,343
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (35,926 ) (40,071 )
Total stockholders’ equity 1,699,589 1,713,847
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $3,391,234 $ 3,468,474

(1) The condensed consolidated balance sheet as of September 27, 2013 was derived from audited financial statements
as of that date, but does not include all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended

December 27 December 28,
(In thousands) 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings $97,960 $ 95,283
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:
Share-based compensation expense 9,044 10,163
Tax benefits from exercises of share-based payment awards 3,879 5,321
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation (3,877 ) (4,937
Depreciation 15,013 15,840
Amortization of intangible assets 1,052 1,116
Deferred taxes 6,600 4,150
Provision for doubtful accounts receivable (229 ) 3,769
Income on equity investment in affiliate 1,391 (179
Other, net (291 ) (1,108
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisition:
Accounts receivable (19,295 ) 53,119
Inventories (24,348 ) (41,015
Prepaid expenses and other assets (226 ) (14,627
Accounts payable (10,744 ) (33,358
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (24,806 ) (39,113
Deferred revenues and advance payments from customers (7,862 ) 17,457
Net cash provided by operating activities 43,261 71,881
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (24,482 ) (20,004
Investment in corporate debt security 9,876 ) (1,384
Net amounts paid to deferred compensation plan trust account — (2,120
Other (1,407 ) (465
Net cash used in investing activities (35,765 ) (23,973
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repurchases of common stock (155,503 ) (103,551
Proceeds from issuance of common stock to employees 30,556 58,929

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 3,877 4,937

— N N

~— N N
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Employees’ taxes withheld and paid for restricted stock and restricted stock units
Net borrowings under line of credit agreements

Repayments under term loan facility

Other

Net cash provided/(used) in financing activities

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

8,302 )

(25,000 )
(204 )

(154,576 )

412
(146,668 )

1,117,861
$971,193

(4,402
45,000

25

888

2,123
50,919

704,570
$ 755,489
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VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business

Varian Medical Systems, Inc. (“VMS”) and subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”’) designs, manufactures, sells and
services hardware and software products for treating cancer with radiotherapy, stereotactic radiosurgery, stereotactic
body radiotherapy, and brachytherapy. The Company also designs, manufactures, sells and services X-ray imaging
components for use in a range of applications, including radiographic or fluoroscopic imaging, mammography,

specific procedures, computed tomography and industrial applications. In addition, the Company designs,
manufactures, sells and services linear accelerators, image processing software and image detection products for
security and inspection purposes. The Company also develops, designs, manufactures, sells and services proton

therapy products and systems for cancer treatment.

Basis of Presentation

The condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Certain information and note disclosures normally
included in annual financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (“GAAP”) have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. These condensed
consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes are unaudited and should be read in conjunction with
the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended September 27, 2013 (the “2013 Annual Report™). In the opinion of management, the condensed
consolidated financial statements herein include adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments)
necessary for a fair statement of the Company’s financial position as of December 27, 2013 and September 27, 2013,
results of operations for the three months ended December 27, 2013 and December 28, 2012, and cash flows for the
three months ended December 27, 2013 and December 28, 2012. The results of operations for the three months ended
December 27, 2013 are not necessarily indicative of the operating results to be expected for the full fiscal year or any
future period.

Reclassifications

Certain items in the condensed consolidated statements of earnings have been reclassified to conform to the current
period’s presentation. These reclassifications had no impact on previously reported total revenues, total cost of
revenues and net earnings.

Fiscal Year

The fiscal years of the Company as reported are the 52- or 53- week periods ending on the Friday nearest
September 30. Fiscal year 2014 is the 52-week period ending September 26, 2014, and fiscal year 2013 was the
52-week period that ended on September 27, 2013. The fiscal quarters ended December 27, 2013 and December 28,
2012 were both 13-week periods.

13
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Principles of Consolidation

The condensed consolidated financial statements include those of VMS and its subsidiaries. Intercompany balances,
transactions and stock holdings have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

14
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VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

(Unaudited)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
a) New accounting updates recently adopted

In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) amended ASC 210, “Balance Sheet,” enhancing
disclosure requirements about the nature of an entity’s right to offset and related arrangements associated with its
financial instruments and derivative instruments. The new guidance requires the disclosure of the gross amounts

subject to rights of set-off, the amounts offset in accordance with the accounting standards followed, and the related

net exposure. This guidance became effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014. As a result of

the application of this accounting standard update, the Company has provided additional disclosures in the

accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements. The adoption of this amendment did not have

an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2013, the FASB issued an accounting standard update to require reclassification adjustments from other
comprehensive income to be presented either in the financial statements or in the notes to the financial statements.
This accounting standard update became effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014. As a result
of the application of this accounting standard update, the Company has provided additional disclosures in the
accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements. The adoption of this amendment did not have
an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

2. BALANCE SHEET COMPONENTS:

December 27,  September 27,
(In millions) 2013 2013
Short-term Investment:
Corporate debt security:

Amortized cost $ 740 $ 627
Unrealized gain (loss) — —
Fair value $ 740 $ 627

The short-term investment, which represents a loan to California Proton Treatment Center, LLC (“CPTC”), is classified
as an available-for-sale corporate debt security. See Note 15, “Variable Interest Entity.”

December 27,  September 27,

(In millions) 2013 2013
Inventories:

Raw materials and parts $ 285.3 $ 276.6
Work-in-process 104.0 91.6

15



Edgar Filing: VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS INC - Form 10-Q

Finished goods 172.5 167.0
Total inventories $ 561.8 $ 5352

December 27,  September 27,

(In millions) 2013 2013
Other long-term liabilities:

Long-term income taxes payable $ 42.3 $ 419
Other 91.2 102.1
Total other long-term liabilities $ 133.5 $ 144.0

16
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VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

(Unaudited)

3. FAIR VALUE

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit
price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. There is a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to
measure fair value. This hierarchy requires entities to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs. The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active; or

other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value
of the assets or liabilities.

Assets/Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
In the tables below, the Company has segregated all assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis into the most appropriate level within the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to determine the fair
value at the measurement date.

Fair Value Measurement Using

Quoted PSigesfiicant

Active Matkets Significant

for Identi@dservable ~ Unobservable

Instrumehtputs Inputs Total
Type of Instruments (Level 1)Level 2) (Level 3) Balance
(In millions)
Assets at December 27, 2013:
Money market funds $200 $ — $ — $20.0
Corporate debt security — — 74.0 74.0
Derivative assets — 3.0 — 3.0
Option to purchase a company — — 1.4 1.4
Total assets measured at fair value $200 $ 3.0 $ 754 $98.4
Liabilities at December 27, 2013:
Derivative liabilities $— $ 05 ) $ — $0.5 )
Contingent consideration — — (2.3 ) 23 )

17
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Total liabilities measured at fair value $— $ (0.5 ) $ 23 ) $28 )

Assets at September 27, 2013:

Money market funds $500 $ — $ — $50.0
Corporate debt security — — 62.7 62.7
Option to purchase a company — — 1.4 1.4
Total assets measured at fair value $500 $ — $ 64.1 $114.1

Liabilities at September 27, 2013:

Derivative liabilities $— $ 1.1 ) $ — $(1.1 )

Contingent consideration — — (2.5 ) 2.5 )

Total liabilities measured at fair value $— $ (1.1 ) $ 25 ) $3.6 )
Money market funds are included under cash and cash equivalents, corporate debt security is included under
short-term investment, option to purchase a company is included under other assets, derivative liabilities are included
under accrued liabilities and contingent consideration is included under accrued liabilities and other-long term
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

The Company obtains valuations of Level 1 money market funds from quotes for transactions in active exchange
markets involving identical assets.

9
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VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

(Unaudited)

The Company’s valuation of its Level 2 instruments includes valuations obtained from quoted prices for identical
assets in markets that are not active. In addition, the Company has elected to use the income approach to value its
derivative instruments using standard valuation techniques and Level 2 inputs, such as currency spot rates, forward
points and credit default swap spreads. The Company’s derivative instruments are short-term in nature, typically one
month to thirteen months in duration.

The Company measures the fair value of its Level 3 contingent consideration liabilities based on the income approach
by using a Monte Carlo simulation model with key assumptions that include estimated sales units of an acquired
business during the earn-out period and estimated discount rates corresponding to the periods of expected payments. If
the estimated sales units were to increase or decrease during the respective earn-out period, the fair value of the
contingent consideration would increase or decrease, respectively. If the estimated discount rates used were to
increase or decrease, the fair value of the contingent consideration would decrease or increase, respectively.

The fair value of the Company’s Level 3 corporate debt security is based on the income approach by using the
discounted cash flow model with key assumptions that include discount rates corresponding to the terms and risks
associated with the loan to CPTC. If the estimated discount rates used were to increase or decrease, the fair value of
the debt security would decrease or increase, respectively. However, the Company does not increase the fair value
above its par value as ORIX Capital Markets, LLC (“ORIX”), the loan agent, has the option to purchase this loan from
the Company under the original terms and conditions at par value.

The fair value of the option to purchase a company, a Level 3 asset, is based on the income approach using key
assumptions that include projected operating results of the company and an estimated discount rate corresponding to
the period of expected payment.

The following table presents the reconciliation for all assets and liabilities measured and recorded at fair value on a
recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

Option to
Corporate Debt  Contingent Purchase a
(In millions) Security Consideration Company
Balance at September 27, 2013 $ 627 $ (25 ) $ 14
Additions, including accrued interest 11.3 — —
Settlements () — 0.2 —
Balance at December 27, 2013 $ 740 $ (23 ) $ 14

(1) Amounts reported under “Contingent Consideration” represent cash payments to settle contingent consideration
liabilities.

There were no transfers of assets or liabilities between fair value measurement levels during either the three months

ended December 27, 2013 or the three months ended December 28, 2012. Transfers between fair value measurement

levels are recognized at the end of the reporting period.

19
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Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments

The fair values of certain of the Company’s financial instruments, including bank deposits and certificate of deposits
included in cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts,
and note receivable approximate their carrying amounts due to their short maturities.

As of both December 27, 2013 and September 27, 2013, the fair value of current maturities of long-term debt
approximated its carrying value of $56 million, due to their short-term maturities. The fair value of our long-term debt
payable in installments through fiscal year 2018 approximated its carrying value of $425 million and $450 million, at
December 27, 2013 and September 27, 2013, respectively, because the term loan is carried at a market observable
interest rate that resets periodically and is categorized as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

10
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VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

(Unaudited)

4. Financing Receivables and Allowance for Credit Losses

A financing receivable represents a financing arrangement with a contractual right to receive money, on demand or on
fixed or determinable dates, and that is recognized as an asset on the Company’s balance sheet.

The Company’s financing receivables, consisting of its accounts receivable with contractual maturities of more than
one year and the related allowance for doubtful accounts are presented in the following table:

December 27, September 27,
(In millions) 2013 2013

Accounts receivable with contractual maturities of more than one year:

Gross amount $ 38.7 $ 28.0
Allowance for doubtful accounts 3.0 ) 3.0 )
Net amount $ 35.7 $ 25.0
Amount past due $ 3.0 $ 3.1

During the three months ended December 27, 2013 and December 28, 2012, the Company sold $1.0 million and $0.6
million of accounts receivable with contractual maturities of more than one year.

5. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table reflects the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of the Company’s intangible
assets included in “Other assets” in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as follows:

December 27, September 27,
(In millions) 2013 2013

Intangible Assets:

Acquired existing technology $ 375 $ 36.6
Patents, licenses and other 27.4 29.0
Customer contracts and supplier relationship ~ 10.9 10.9
Accumulated amortization (52.4 ) (53.1 )
Net carrying amount $ 234 $ 234

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $1.1 million for both of the three months ended December 27, 2013
and December 28, 2012. The Company estimates amortization expense for the remaining nine months of fiscal year

21
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2014, fiscal year 2015, fiscal year 2016, fiscal year 2017, fiscal year 2018, fiscal year 2019 and thereafter, will be as
follows (in millions): $4.5, $6.3, $2.7, $2.0, $1.8, and $6.1, respectively.

The following table reflects the activity of goodwill by reportable operating segment:

Oncology  X-Ray

(In millions) Systems Products Other Total
Balance at September 27, 2013 $ 132.0 $17.0 $76.3 $225.3
Acquisition of business 0.6 — — 0.6
Foreign currency translation adjustments — — 1.1 1.1
Balance at December 27, 2013 $ 132.6 $17.0 $774 $227.0

11
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VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

(Unaudited)

6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

VMS has a 40% ownership interest in dpiX Holding LLC (“dpiX Holding”), a two-member consortium which has a
100% ownership interest in dpiX LLC (“dpiX”), a supplier of amorphous silicon based thin-film transistor arrays (“flat
panels”) for the Company’s X-Ray Products’ digital image detectors and for its Oncology Systems’ On-Board Imd&er
(“OBI”), and Portal VisidM imaging products. In accordance with the dpiX Holding agreement, net losses were to be
allocated to the members, in succession, until their capital accounts equaled zero, then to the members in accordance
with their ownership interests. The dpiX Holding agreement also provided that net profits were initially to be allocated
to the members, in succession, until their capital accounts equaled the net losses previously allocated, then to the
members in accordance with their ownership interests.

The equity investment in dpiX Holding is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. When VMS
recognizes its share of net profits or losses of dpiX Holding, profits or losses in inventory purchased from dpiX are
eliminated until realized by VMS. VMS recorded loss on the equity investment in dpiX Holding of $1.4 million in the
three months ended December 27, 2013 and income of $0.2 million in the three months ended December 28, 2012.
Income and loss on the equity investment in dpiX Holding are included in “Selling, general and administrative”
expenses in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Earnings. The carrying value of the equity investment in dpiX
Holding, which was included in “Other assets” in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, was $47.2 million at
December 27, 2013 and $49.7 million at September 27, 2013.

During the three months ended December 27, 2013 and December 28, 2012, the Company purchased glass transistor
arrays from dpiX totaling approximately $3.5 million and $10.8 million, respectively. These purchases of glass
transistor arrays are included as a component of “Inventory” in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets or “Cost of
revenues—product” in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Earnings for these periods.

During the three months ended December 27, 2013, VMS entered into an amended agreement with dpiX and other
parties that, among other things, provides the Company with the right to 50% of dpiX’s total manufacturing capacity
produced after January 1, 2014. The amended agreement requires the Company to pay for 50% of the fixed costs (as
defined in the amended agreement), as determined at the beginning of each calendar year. As of December 27, 2013,
the Company did not have any fixed cost commitments related to this amended agreement. The amended agreement
will continue unless the ownership structure of dpiX changes (as defined in the amended agreement).

7. BORROWINGS
On August 27, 2013, VMS entered into a credit agreement (as amended to date, the “2013 Credit Facility””) with certain
lenders and Bank of America (“BofA”) as administrative agent. The Credit Agreement provides for (i) a five-year term

loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to $500 million (the “2013 Term Loan Facility”) and (ii) a five-year
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revolving credit facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to $300 million (the “2013 Revolving Credit Facility”
and, collectively with the Term Loan Facility, the “2013 Credit Facility”’). The Revolving Credit Facility also includes a
$50 million sub-facility for the issuance of letters of credit and permits swing line loans of up to $25 million. Under
the 2013 Credit Agreement, the Company has the right to make (i) up to two requests to increase the aggregate
commitments under the Term Loan Facility by an aggregate amount for all such requests of up to $100 million and

(ii) up to three requests to increase the aggregate commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility by an aggregate
amount for all such requests of up to $200 million, provided that, in each case, the Lenders are willing to provide such
new or increased commitments and certain other conditions are met. The 2013 Credit Facility contains provisions that
limit the Company’s ability to pay cash dividends. The proceeds of the Credit Facility may be used for working capital,
capital expenditures, permitted Company share repurchases, permitted acquisitions and other lawful corporate
purposes.

Borrowings under the 2013 Term Loan Facility accrue interest either (i) based on a Eurodollar Rate, as defined in the
Credit Agreement (the “Eurodollar Rate”), plus a margin of 1.00% to 1.25% based on a leverage ratio involving funded
indebtedness and EBITDA or (ii) based upon a base rate of (a) the federal funds rate plus 0.50%, (b) BofA’s
announced prime rate, or (c) the Eurodollar Rate plus 1.00%, whichever is highest, plus a margin of 0.00% to 0.25%
based on the same leverage Ratio, depending upon instructions from the Company. Borrowings under the 2013
Revolving Credit Facility accrue interest either (i) based on the Eurodollar Rate plus a margin of 1.25% to 1.50%
based on a leverage ratio involving funded indebtedness and EBITDA or (ii) based upon a base rate of (a) the federal
funds rate plus 0.50%, (b) BofA’s announced prime rate, or (c) the Eurodollar Rate plus 1.00%, whichever is highest,
plus a margin of 0.25% to 0.50% based on the same leverage ratio, depending upon instructions from the Company.
At December 27, 2013, borrowings under the 2013 Term Loan Facility totaled $475 million with a weighted average
interest rate of 1.29%. At December 27, 2013, there was no amount outstanding on the 2013 Revolving Credit
Facility.
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Subject to certain limitations on the amount secured, a pledge of stock issued by certain of our present and future
subsidiaries that are deemed to be material under the terms of the 2013 Credit Facility serve as security for the 2013
Credit Facility. These stock pledges also serve as security for all hedging or treasury management obligations entered
into by the Company with a Lender. As of December 27, 2013, VMS had pledged 65% of the voting shares that it
holds in Varian Medical Systems Nederland Holdings B.V., a wholly owned subsidiary. The 2013 Credit Agreement
provides that certain material domestic subsidiaries must guarantee the 2013 Credit Facility, subject to certain
limitations on the amount secured. As of December 27, 2013, the 2013 Credit Facility was not guaranteed by any
VMS subsidiary.

The 2013 Credit Agreement contains affirmative and negative covenants applicable to the Company and its
subsidiaries that are typical for credit facilities of this type, and that are subject to materiality and other qualifications,
carve-outs, baskets and exceptions. The Company has also agreed to maintain certain financial covenants including
(i) a maximum consolidated leverage ratio, involving funded indebtedness and EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax
and depreciation and amortization), and (ii) a minimum cash flow coverage ratio. The Company was in compliance
with all covenants under the 2013 Credit Agreement for all periods within these consolidated financial statements in
which it was in existence.

Prior to the 2013 Credit Facility, VMS had a credit agreement (the ‘2012 Credit Facility”) with certain lenders and
BofA as administrative agent which provided for a revolving credit facility that enabled the Company to borrow and
have outstanding at any given time a maximum of $300 million. On August 27, 2013, VMS replaced the 2012 Credit
Facility with the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility, terminating the 2012 Credit Facility agreement entered into as of
April 27, 2012 and repaying in full the approximately $148 million then-outstanding principal balance, plus accrued
interest and fees. At September 27, 2013, borrowings under the 2013 Term Loan Facility totaled $500 million with a
weighted average interest rate of 1.31%. At September 27, 2013, there was no amount outstanding on the 2013
Revolving Credit Facility.

VMS’s Japanese subsidiary (“VMS KK”) has an unsecured uncommitted credit agreement with Sumitomo that enables
VMS KK to borrow and have outstanding at any given time a maximum of 3 billion Japanese yen (the “Sumitomo
Credit Facility”). In March 2013, the Sumitomo Credit Facility was extended. The Sumitomo Credit Facility will expire
on April 5, 2014. Borrowings under the Sumitomo Credit Facility accrue interest based on the basic loan rate
announced by the Bank of Japan plus a margin of 0.5% per annum. As of December 27, 2013 and September 27,

2013, there were no outstanding amounts under the Sumitomo Credit Facility.

As at both December 27, 2013 and September 27, 2013, we had $6.3 million of a term loan outstanding, which is
included in current maturities on long-term debt on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet. This interest rate on
the loan is 6.7% and the principal amount of the loan is payable in fiscal year 2014.

8. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

25



Edgar Filing: VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS INC - Form 10-Q

The Company measures all derivatives at fair value on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The accounting
for gains or losses resulting from changes in the fair value of those derivatives depends upon the use of the derivative
and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge

accounting treatment must be recognized in earnings, together with elements excluded from effectiveness testing and
the ineffective portion of a particular hedge.
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The fair values of derivative instruments reported on the Company’s Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets were as
follows:

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
December 28gptember 27, December 28gptember 27,
Balance Sheet 2013 2013 Balance Sheet 2013 2013
(In millions) Location Fair Value Fair Value Location Fair Value Fair Value
Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments:
Foreign exchange forward Prepaid expenses
contracts and other current
assets $ 3.0 $ —  Accrued liabilities $ 0.5 $ 1.1
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments:
Foreign exchange forward Prepaid expenses
contracts and other current
assets — — Accrued liabilities — —
Total derivatives $ 3.0 $ — $ 05 $ 1.1

See Note 3, “Fair Value” regarding valuation of the Company’s derivative instruments. Also see Note 1, “Significant
Accounting Policies” to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company’s 2013 Annual Report regarding credit
risk associated with the Company’s derivative instruments.

Offsetting of Derivatives

The Company presents its derivative assets and derivative liabilities on a gross basis in the Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets. However, under agreements containing provisions on netting with certain counterparties of foreign
exchange contracts, subject to applicable requirements, the Company is allowed to net-settle transactions on the same
date in the same currency, with a single net amount payable by one party to the other. As of December 27,

2013 and September 27, 2013, there were no potential effects of rights of setoff associated with derivative
instruments. The Company is neither required to pledge nor entitled to receive cash collateral related to these
derivative transactions.

Cash Flow Hedging Activities
The Company has many transactions denominated in foreign currencies and addresses certain of those financial
exposures through a risk management program that includes the use of derivative financial instruments. The Company

sells products throughout the world, often in the currency of the customer’s country, and may hedge certain of the
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larger foreign currency transactions when they are either not denominated in the relevant subsidiary’s functional
currency or the U.S. Dollar. These foreign currency sales transactions are hedged using foreign currency forward
contracts. The Company may use other derivative instruments in the future. The Company enters into foreign currency
forward contracts primarily to reduce the effects of fluctuating foreign currency exchange rates. The Company does
not enter into foreign currency forward contracts for speculative or trading purposes. Foreign currency forward
contracts may be entered into several times a quarter and range from one to thirteen months. As of December 27,
2013, the foreign currency forward contracts ranged from one to thirteen months in maturity.

14
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The hedges of foreign currency denominated forecasted revenues are accounted for in accordance with ASC 815,
“Derivatives and Hedging,” pursuant to which the Company has designated its hedges of forecasted foreign currency
revenues as cash flow hedges. The Company’s designated cash flow hedges de-designate when the anticipated
revenues associated with the transactions are recognized and the effective portion in “Accumulated other
comprehensive loss” in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets is reclassified to “Revenues” in the Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Earnings. Subsequent changes in fair value of the derivative instrument are recorded in
“Selling, general and administrative expenses” in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Earnings to offset changes
in fair value of the resulting non-functional currency receivables. For derivative instruments that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges, the Company formally documents for each derivative instrument at the hedge’s inception
the relationship between the hedging instrument (foreign currency forward contract) and hedged item (forecasted
foreign currency revenues), the nature of the risk being hedged, and its risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge. The Company records the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative instrument that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” in the Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets and reclassifies these amounts into “Revenues” in the Condensed Consolidated Statements
of Earnings in the period during which the hedged transaction is recognized in earnings. The Company assesses hedge
effectiveness both at the onset of the hedge and on an ongoing basis using regression analysis. The Company
measures hedge ineffectiveness by comparing the cumulative change in the fair value of the effective component of
the hedge contract with the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged item. The Company recognizes any over
performance of the derivative as ineffectiveness in “Revenues,” and amounts excluded from the assessment of
effectiveness in “Cost of revenues” in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Earnings. During the three months
ended December 27, 2013, the Company did not discontinue any cash flow hedges. At the inception of the hedge, the
Company assesses whether the likelihood of meeting the forecasted cash flow is highly probable. As of December 27,
2013, all forecasted cash flows were still probable to occur. As of December 27, 2013, net unrealized gain on
derivative instruments of $2.4 million, before tax, was included in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss,” and is
expected to be reclassified to earnings over the 12 months that follow.

The Company had the following outstanding foreign currency forward contracts that were designated as cash flow
hedges:

Notional Value

Sold
December 27,
(In millions) 2013
Euro $ 339
Japanese yen  55.4
Totals $ 893

The following table presents the amounts, before tax, recognized in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” in the
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets and in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Earnings that are related to
the effective portion of the foreign currency forward contracts designated as cash flow hedges:
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Location of Gain Gain (Loss) Reclassified from Accumulated Other
Gain (Loss) Recognized in Othleoss) Reclassified ~Comprehensive Income into Net
Comprehensive Income from Accumulated  Earnings
(Effective Portion) Other Comprehensive (Effective Portion)
Three Months Ended Income into Net Three Months Ended
December 27, December 28 Earnings (Effective December 27, December 28,
(In millions) 2013 2012 Portion) 2013 2012
Foreign exchange
contracts $ 32 $ 03 Revenues $ (©4 ) $ 08
15
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Balance Sheet Hedging Activities

The Company also hedges balance sheet exposures from its various subsidiaries and business units where the

U.S. Dollar is the functional currency. The Company enters into foreign currency forward contracts to minimize the
short-term impact of foreign currency fluctuations on monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other
than the U.S. Dollar functional currency. The foreign currency forward contracts are short term in nature, typically
with a maturity of approximately one month, and are based on the net forecasted balance sheet exposure. These
hedges of foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment and are
not designated as hedging instruments. For derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments, changes in
their fair values are recognized in “Selling, general and administrative expenses” in the Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Earnings. Changes in the values of these hedging instruments are offset by changes in the values of
foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities. Variations from the forecasted foreign currency assets or
liabilities, coupled with a significant currency rate movement, may result in a material gain or loss if the hedges are
not effectively offsetting the change in value of the foreign currency asset or liability. Other than foreign exchange
hedging activities, the Company has no other free-standing or embedded derivative instruments.

The Company had the following outstanding foreign currency forward contracts that were entered into to hedge
balance sheet exposures from its various foreign subsidiaries and business units:

At December 27,
2013
Notional
Notional Value
(In millions) Value Sold®urchased

Australian dollar $10.8 $ —
British pound 26.8 —
Canadian dollar 2.7 —

Euro 180.7 1.0
Hungarian forint — 0.5
Indian rupee 5.7 —
Japanese yen 126.6 —
Norwegian krone — 2.1
Swedish krona 3.7 —
Swiss franc — 494
Totals $357.0 $ 53.0

The following table presents the gains recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Earnings related to
the foreign currency forward exchange contracts that are not designated as hedging instruments.
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Amount of Gain
Location of Gain Recognized in Income on ~ Recognized in Net Earnings on

Derivative Derivative

Three Months Ended

December 27, December 28,
(In millions) 2013 2012
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 4.7 $ 25

The gains (losses) on these derivative instruments were significantly offset by the gains (losses) resulting from the
remeasurement of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar functional
currency.
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Contingent Features

Certain of the Company’s derivative instruments are subject to master agreements which contain provisions that
require the Company, in the event of a default, to settle the outstanding contracts in net liability positions by making
settlement payments in cash or by setting off amounts owed to the counterparty against any credit support or collateral
held by the counterparty. The counterparty’s right of set-off is not limited to the derivative instruments and applies to
other rights held by the counterparty. These events of default, which are defined by the existing agreements, are
primarily related to the Company’s failure to pay the counterparty under the derivative instruments, voluntary or
involuntary bankruptcy, the Company’s default on its borrowings, and deterioration of creditworthiness of the
surviving entity if the Company merges or transfers its assets or liabilities to another entity. As of December 27, 2013
and September 27, 2013, the Company did not have significant outstanding derivative instruments with
credit-risk-related contingent features that were in a net liability position.

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Product Warranty

The following table reflects the changes in the Company’s accrued product warranty:

Three Months Ended
DecembeD2¢ember 28,
(In millions) 2013 2012

Accrued product warranty, at beginning of period $53.2 $ 52.8

Charged to cost of revenues 15.2 11.8
Actual product warranty expenditures (17.7) (13.9 )
Accrued product warranty, at end of period $50.7 $ 50.7

Long-term accrued product warranty costs of $2.0 million are included under Other long-term liabilities on the
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 27, 2013.

Other Commitments
In September 2011, the Company, through its Swiss subsidiary, participated in a $165.3 million loan facility for
CPTC, under which the subsidiary committed to loan up to $115.3 million to finance the construction and start-up

operations of a proton therapy center. See Note 15, “Variable Interest Entity” for a detailed discussion.

In April 2012, VMS entered into a strategic global partnership with Siemens AG (“Siemens”) through which the
Company committed to make certain payments, including up to $10 million in fixed fees and $20 million in license

33



Edgar Filing: VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS INC - Form 10-Q

fees, in the event certain product development milestones are achieved. The Company made fixed fee payments to
Siemens of $2.0 million during the three months ended December 27, 2013 and as of December 27, 2013, had accrued
$0.5 million of the fixed fees under the terms of the agreement. As of December 27, 2013, no amount related to
achievement of product development milestones was payable under this agreement. See Note 16, “Strategic
Arrangement” for additional discussion.

During the three months ended December 27, 2013, VMS entered into an amended agreement with dpiX and other
parties that, among other things, provides the Company with the right to 50% of dpiX’s total manufacturing capacity
produced after January 1, 2014. The amended agreement requires the Company to pay for 50% of the fixed costs (as
defined in the amended agreement), as determined at the beginning of each calendar year. As of December 27, 2013,
the Company did not have any fixed cost commitments related to this amended agreement. The amended agreement
will continue unless the ownership structure of dpiX changes (as defined in the amended agreement).
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Environmental Remediation Liabilities

The Company’s operations and facilities, past and present, are subject to environmental laws, including laws that
regulate the handling, storage, transport and disposal of hazardous substances. Certain of those laws impose cleanup
liabilities under certain circumstances. In connection with those laws and certain of the Company’s past and present
operations and facilities, the Company oversees various environmental cleanup projects and also reimburses certain
third parties for cleanup activities. Those include facilities sold as part of the Company’s electron devices business in
1995 and thin film systems business in 1997. In addition, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) or third
parties have named the Company as a potentially responsible party under the amended Comprehensive Environmental
Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (“CERCLA?”), at sites to which the Company or the facilities of the
sold businesses were alleged to have shipped waste for recycling or disposal (the “CERCLA sites”). In connection with
the CERCLA sites, the Company to date has been required to pay only modest amounts as its contributions to cleanup
efforts. Under the agreement that governs the spin-offs of Varian, Inc., which was acquired by Agilent Technologies
Inc. (the successor entity hereinafter referred to as “VI”), and Varian Semiconductor Equipment Associates, Inc., which
was acquired by Applied Materials, Inc. (the successor entity hereinafter referred to as “VSEA”), VI and VSEA are each
obligated to indemnify the Company for one-third of the environmental cleanup costs associated with corporate,
discontinued or sold operations prior to the spin-offs (after adjusting for any insurance proceeds or tax benefits
received by the Company), as well as fully indemnify the Company for other liabilities arising from the operations of
the business transferred to it as part of the spin-offs.

The Company spent $0.2 million (net of amounts borne by VI and VSEA) during both the three months ended
December 27, 2013 and December 28, 2012, on environmental cleanup costs, third-party claim costs, project
management costs and legal costs.

Inherent uncertainties make it difficult to estimate the likelihood of the cost of future cleanup, third-party claims,
project management and legal services for the CERCLA sites and one of the Company’s past facilities. Nonetheless, as
of December 27, 2013, the Company estimated that, net of VI's and VSEA’s indemnification obligations, future costs
associated with the CERCLA sites and this facility would range in total from $1.9 million to $9.8 million. The time
frames over which these cleanup project costs are estimated vary, ranging from one year up to thirty years as of
December 27, 2013. Management believes that no amount in that range is more probable of being incurred than any
other amount and therefore accrued $1.9 million for these cleanup projects as of December 27, 2013. The accrued
amount has not been discounted to present value due to the uncertainties that make it difficult to develop a single best
estimate.

The Company believes it has gained sufficient knowledge to better estimate the scope and cost of monitoring, cleanup
and management activities for its other past and present facilities. This, in part, is based on agreements with other
parties and also cleanup plans approved by or completed in accordance with the requirements of the governmental
agencies having jurisdiction. As of December 27, 2013, the Company estimated that the Company’s future exposure,
net of VI’s and VSEA’s indemnification obligations, for the costs at these facilities, and reimbursements of third party’s
claims for these facilities, ranged in total from $6.2 million to $35.8 million. The time frames over which these costs
are estimated to be incurred vary, ranging from one year to thirty years as of December 27, 2013. As to each of these
facilities, management determined that a particular amount within the range of estimated costs was a better estimate
than any other amount within the range, and that the amount and timing of these future costs were reliably
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determinable. The best estimate within that range was $12.2 million at December 27, 2013. Accordingly, the
Company has accrued $9.3 million for these costs, which represents the best estimate discounted at 4%, net of
inflation. This accrual is in addition to the $1.9 million described in the preceding paragraph.

These amounts are only estimates of anticipated future costs. The amounts the Company will actually spend may be
greater or less than these estimates, even as the Company believes the degree of uncertainty will narrow as cleanup
activities progress. While the Company believes its reserve is adequate, as the scope of the Company’s obligations
becomes more clearly defined, the Company may modify the reserve, and charge or credit future earnings
accordingly. Nevertheless, based on information currently known to management, and assuming VI and VSEA satisfy
their indemnification obligations, management believes the costs of these environmental-related matters are not
reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Company in any one
fiscal year.
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The Company evaluates its liability for investigation and cleanup costs in light of the obligations and apparent
financial strength of potentially responsible parties and insurance companies with respect to which the Company
believes it has rights to indemnity or reimbursement. The Company has asserted claims for recovery of environmental
investigation and cleanup costs already incurred, and to be incurred in the future against various insurance companies
and other third parties. The Company receives certain cash payments in the form of settlements and judgments from
defendants, insurers and other third parties from time to time. The Company has also reached an agreement with an
insurance company under which that insurer has agreed to pay a portion of the Company’s past and future
environmental-related expenditures. Receivables, net of VI’s and VSEA’s portion, from that insurer amounted to $2.4
million at December 27, 2013 and at September 27, 2013, with the respective current portion included in “Prepaid
expenses and other current assets” and the respective noncurrent portion included in “Other assets” in the Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company believes that this receivable is recoverable because it is based on a
binding, written settlement agreement with what appears to be a financially viable insurance company, and the
insurance company has paid the Company’s claims in the past.

The availability of the indemnities of VI and VSEA will depend upon the future financial strength of VI and VSEA.
Given the long-term nature of some of the liabilities, VI and VSEA may be unable to fund the indemnities in the
future. It is also possible that a court would disregard this contractual allocation among the parties and require the
Company to assume responsibility for obligations allocated to another party, particularly if the other party were to
refuse or was unable to pay any of its allocated share. The agreement governing the spin-offs generally provides that if
a court prohibits a company from satisfying its shared indemnification obligations, the indemnification obligations
will be shared equally by the two other companies.

Other Matters

From time to time, the Company is a party to or otherwise involved in legal proceedings, claims and government
inspections or investigations and other legal matters, both inside and outside the United States, arising in the ordinary
course of its business or otherwise. These matters include, as of December 27, 2013, a patent infringement lawsuit
initiated on April 13, 2007 by the University of Pittsburgh of the Commonwealth System of Higher Education (the
“University of Pittsburgh”) regarding the Company’s Real-time Position Management™ (“RPM”) technology. The lawsuit
was dismissed and re-filed on June 16, 2008 in the Northern District of California. The case was subsequently
transferred to the United States District Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania (“trial court”). On or about
December 21, 2011, the trial court entered a summary judgment order in the case finding that the Company’s RPM
technology was covered by some of the claims of the subject patent. Subsequently, in early 2012, in the proceedings at
the trial court on the remaining issues in litigation, it was found (i) that the Company willfully infringed the subject
patent, (ii) that the Company is liable for approximately $40 million in actual damages and (iii) that the subject patent
was valid. The trial court has ordered the Company to pay a total of approximately $102 million, comprised of
approximately $80 million in enhanced damages (a doubling of the damages amount), pre-judgment interest to the
damage award of approximately $13 million and approximately $9 million in attorneys’ fees. The trial court also
ordered the Company to pay ongoing royalties at the rates found by the jury for sales after the date of judgment. If our
appeal is not successful, on-going royalties, assuming future U.S. sales and manufacturing of the infringing product
remains approximately at the 2012 levels, could be up to $5 million per year through September 2016, the expiration
of University of Pittsburgh’s patent. The Company has appealed the findings against it and believes that it has valid
reasons for the judgment to be reversed.
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The Company accrues amounts, to the extent they can be reasonably estimated, that it believes are adequate to address
any liabilities related to legal proceedings and other loss contingencies that the Company believes will result in a
probable loss (including, among other things, probable settlement value). As of December 27, 2013, the Company had
accrued an aggregate of approximately $5.0 million of such losses with respect to ongoing proceedings, for the low
end of the range of the probable settlement value for the University of Pittsburgh proceeding. However, such matters
are subject to many uncertainties and outcomes are not predictable with assurance. The range of reasonably possible
loss for the University of Pittsburgh matter, up to the date of the trial court judgment, is from zero to approximately
$102 million (this range does not include ongoing royalties subsequent to the date of the trial court judgment). The
Company is unable to estimate a range of reasonably possible losses in excess of the amounts accrued with respect to
all other matters. There can be no assurances as to whether the Company will become subject to significant additional
claims and liabilities with respect to ongoing or future proceedings. If actual liabilities significantly exceed the
estimates made, the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows could be materially
adversely affected.

Restructuring Charges

As part of the Company’s plan to enhance operational performance through productivity initiatives, the Company
offered an enhanced retirement program to its qualified employees during the first quarter of fiscal year 2013. The
Company incurred restructuring charges of approximately $4.1 million during the three months ended December 28,
2012. No restructuring charges were incurred during the three months ended December 27, 2013 in relation to this or
any other restructuring program.

19

38



Edgar Filing: VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS INC - Form 10-Q
VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (CONTINUED)

(Unaudited)

10. RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company’s net defined benefit and post-retirement benefit costs were composed of the following:

Three Months Ended
December 2December 28,
(In thousands) 2013 2012
Defined Benefit Plans
Service cost $1,023 $ 1,229
Interest cost 1,514 1,320
Expected return on plan assets (1,935) (1,440 )
Amortization of prior service cost 43 40
Recognized actuarial loss 539 682
Net periodic benefit cost $1,184 $ 1,831
Post-Retirement Benefit Plans
Interest cost $43 $ 40
Amortization of prior service cost 1 1
Recognized actuarial (gain) / loss (3 ) 15
Net periodic benefit cost $41 $ 56

The Company made contributions to the defined benefit plans of $1.5 million during the three months ended
December 27, 2013. The Company currently expects total contributions to the defined benefit plans for fiscal year
2014 will be approximately $6.4 million. The Company made contributions to the post-retirement benefit plans of
$0.1 million during the three months ended December 27, 2013. The Company currently expects total contributions to
the post-retirement benefit plans for fiscal year 2014 will be approximately $0.5 million.

11. INCOME TAXES

The Company’s effective tax rate was 31.2% for the three months ended December 27, 2013, compared to 31.0% for
the same period of fiscal year 2013. The increase in the Company’s effective tax rate for the three month period ended
December 27, 2013 compared to the year ago period was primarily due to the geographic mix of earnings.

The Company’s effective income tax rate differs from the U.S. federal statutory rate primarily because the Company’s

foreign earnings are taxed at rates that are, on average, lower than the U.S. federal rate, and because the Company’s
domestic earnings are subject to state income taxes.
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The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits did not change by a significant amount during the three months ended
December 27, 2013; however, the amount of unrecognized tax benefits has increased as a result of positions taken
during the current and prior years, and has decreased as the result of the expiration of the statutes of limitation and
audit settlements in various jurisdictions.

12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Stock Repurchase Program

In August 2012, the VMS Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of 8,000,000 shares of VMS common stock
from September 29, 2012 through December 31, 2013. The Company repurchased a total of 2,000,000 and 1,500,000
shares of VMS common stock during the three months ended December 27, 2013 and December 28, 2012,
respectively. As of December 27, 2013, no shares of VMS common stock remained available for repurchase under this
repurchase authorization. All shares that were repurchased have been retired.

In November 2013, the VMS Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of an additional 6,000,000 shares of VMS
common stock from December 30, 2013 through December 31, 2014. Stock repurchases under the November 2013
authorization may be made in open market purchases, in privately negotiated transactions (including accelerated share
repurchase programs) or under Rule 10b5-1 share repurchase plans, and may be made from time to time in one or
more blocks. Shares will be retired upon repurchase. As of December 27, 2013, 6,000,000 shares of VMS common
stock remained available for repurchase under this repurchase authorization.
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Other Comprehensive Earnings

The changes in accumulated other comprehensive earnings (loss) by component and related tax effects for the three
months ended December 27, 2013 and December 28, 2012 are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Net
Net Unrealized Gains Unrealized
(Losses) Defined Gains Accumulated
benefit pension (Losses) Cumulative Other
and Cash Flow Translation Comprehensive
post-retirement Hedging Adjustment Earnings
benefit plans Instruments and Other  (Loss)
Balance at September 27, 2013 $ (40,081 ) $ (691 ) $ 701 $ (40,071 )
Other comprehensive earnings before
reclassifications — 3,182 1,469 4,651
Amounts reclassified out of other comprehensive
earnings 580 350 — 930
Tax benefit / (expense) (107 ) (1,329 ) — (1,436 )
Balance at December 27, 2013 $ (39,608 ) $1,512 $ 2,170 $ (35,926 )
Net
Unrealized
Net Unrealized Gains Gains Accumulated
(Losses) Defined (Losses) Cumulative Other
benefit pension and Cash Flow Translation Comprehensive
post-retirement Hedging Adjustment Earnings
benefit plans Instruments and Other  (Loss)
Balance at September 28, 2012 $ (48,623 ) $ 531 $(8,529 ) $ (56,621 )
Other comprehensive earnings before
reclassifications — 283 4,916 5,199
Amounts reclassified out of other comprehensive
earnings 737 (760 ) — 23 )
Tax benefit / (expense) (137 ) 179 — 42
Balance at December 28, 2012 $ (48,023 ) $ 233 $ (3,613 ) $ (51,403 )

The amounts reclassified out of other comprehensive earnings into the Condensed Consolidated Statements of
Earnings, with line item location, during each period were as follows (in thousands):
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Comprehensive Earnings Components
Net unrealized gains and (losses) on defined benefit
pension and post-retirement benefit plans

Net unrealized gains and (losses) on cash flow hedging
instruments

Total amounts reclassified out of other comprehensive
earnings

13. EMPLOYEE STOCK PLANS

Three Months

Ended

Decemtide@mber 28,

2013 2012

Income (Loss)

Before Taxes Line Item in Statements of Earnings
Cost of Revenues & Operating

$580 $ 737 Expenses

350 (760 ) Revenues

$930 $ (23 )

In February 2012, VMS’s stockholders approved an amendment of the Varian Medical Systems, Inc. 2005 Omnibus
Stock Plan and its restatement as the Third Amended and Restated 2005 Omnibus Stock Plan (the “Third Amended
2005 Plan”) to (i) increase the number of shares available for grant under the plan by 6,000,000 shares, (ii) change the
number of shares counted against the available-for-grant limit from 2.5 shares to 2.6 shares for every one share issued
in connection with awards other than stock options and stock appreciation rights on a go-forward basis and (iii) extend
the term of the Third Amended 2005 Plan until November 11, 2021.
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The table below summarizes the net share-based compensation expense recognized for employee stock awards and for
the option component of the employee stock purchase plan shares:

Three Months Ended
December 2DDecember 28,
(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2013 2012
Cost of revenues — Product $707 $ 1,111
Cost of revenues — Service 947 363
Research and development 1,301 1,739
Selling, general and administrative 6,089 6,950
Taxes on earnings (2,798 ) (3,169 )

Net share-based compensation expense ~ $ 6,246 $ 6,994
During the three months ended December 27, 2013, total share-based compensation expense recognized in earnings
before taxes was $9.0 million and the total related recognized tax benefit was $2.8 million. During the three months
ended December 28, 2012, total share-based compensation expense recognized in earnings before taxes was $10.2
million, respectively, and the total related recognized tax benefit was $3.2 million.

During the three months ended December 27, 2013, the Company granted performance units to certain employees
under the Third Amended 2005 Plan. The number of shares of VMS common stock ultimately issued under the
performance units at the end of a three-year performance period will depend on the Company’s business performance
during the three-year period against specified performance targets set by the Compensation and Management
Development Committee of the Board of Directors at the beginning of the period. Subject to certain exceptions, any
unvested performance unit awards are generally forfeited at the time of termination.

The fair value of options granted was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model with the following
weighted average assumptions:

Three Months Ended
December 2December 28,
2013 2012
Employee Stock Option Plans
Expected term (in years) 4.87 4.76
Risk-free interest rate 13 % 0.6 %
Expected volatility 272 % 324 %
Expected dividend 00 % 0.0 %

Weighted average fair value at grant date $ 19.44 $ 19.76
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Black-Scholes model with the following weighted average assumptions:
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Three Months Ended
December 2December 28,
2013 2012
Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Expected term (in years) 0.50 0.50
Risk-free interest rate 01 % 0.2 %
Expected volatility 145 % 19.3 %
Expected dividend 00 % 0.0 %

Weighted average fair value at grant date $ 13.98 $ 13.45
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A summary of share-based awards available for grant is as follows:

Shares

Available
(In thousands, except per share amounts) for Grant
Balance at September 27, 2013 9,925
Granted 310 )
Cancelled or expired 24
Balance at December 27, 2013 9,639

Awards other than stock options set forth in the table were counted against the shares available for grant limit of the
Third Amended 2005 Plan as 2.5 shares for every one share awarded before February 9, 2012 and were counted
against the shares available for grant limit as 2.6 shares for every one awarded on or after February 9, 2012. In
addition, the shares available for grant limit was further adjusted to reflect a maximum payout of 1.5 shares that could
be issued for each performance unit granted.

Activity under the Company’s employee stock plans is presented below:

Options Outstanding

Weighted-
Weighted Average
Average  Remaining Aggregate
Number dfxercise Contractual Intrinsic

(In thousands, except per share amounts) Shares Price Term (in years)  Value (D
Balance at September 27, 2013 4485 $53.02
Granted 11 74.28
Cancelled or expired (6 ) 6576
Exercised 489 ) 4792
Balance at December 27, 2013 4,001 $ 53.68 3.0 $92,915
Exercisable at December 27, 2013 3,419 $51.71 2.6 $ 86,142

(1) The aggregate intrinsic value represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value of options, which is computed based on the
difference between the exercise price and VMS’s closing common stock price of $76.91 as of December 27, 2013, that
last trading date of the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, and which would have been received by the option holders had
all option holders exercised and sold their options as of that date.

As of December 27, 2013, there was $7.7 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to outstanding
stock options. This unrecognized compensation expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period
of 1.5 years.
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The activity for restricted stock, restricted stock units, deferred stock units and performance units is summarized as
follows:

Weighted Average
Grant-Date Fair
(In thousands, except per share amounts) Shares Value

Balance at September 27, 2013 1,035 $ 64.36
Granted 81 76.91
Vested (312 ) 62.73
Cancelled or expired @7 ) 64.70
Balance at December 27, 2013 797 $ 66.30
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Share-based compensation expense for restricted common stock, restricted stock units and deferred stock units is
measured at the stock’s fair value on the date of grant and is amortized over each award’s respective service period. The
Company values performance units using the Monte Carlo simulation model on the date of grant with assumptions

that includes the historical volatilities of shares of VMS common stock, as well as the shares of common stock of peer
companies. In addition, the Company estimates the probability that certain performance conditions that affect the
vesting of performance units will be achieved, and recognizes expense only for those awards expected to vest.

As of December 27, 2013, unrecognized compensation expense totaling $31.0 million was related to awards of
restricted stocks, restricted stock units, deferred stock units and performance units. This unrecognized compensation
expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.9 years.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic net earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of shares of VMS
common stock outstanding for the period. Diluted net earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings by the
sum of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and dilutive common shares under the treasury
stock method.

The following table sets forth the computation of net basic and diluted earnings per share:

Three Months Ended
December 2December 28,
(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2013 2012
Net earnings $97,960 $ 95,283
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic 105,986 109,298
Dilutive effect of potential common shares 1,463 1,846
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted 107,449 111,144
Net earnings per share — basic $0.92 $ 0.87
Net earnings per share — diluted $0.91 $ 0.86
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Anti-dilutive employee shared based awards, excluded 357 1,095
The Company excludes potentially dilutive common shares (consisting of shares underlying stock options and the
employee stock purchase plan) from the computation of diluted weighted average shares outstanding if the per share
value, either the exercise price of the awards or the sum of (a) the exercise price of the awards and (b) the amount of
the compensation cost attributed to future services and not yet recognized and (c) the amount of tax benefit or shortfall
that would be recorded in additional paid-in capital when the award becomes deductible, is greater than the average
market price of the shares, because the inclusion of the shares underlying these stock awards would be antidilutive to
earnings per share.
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15. VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITY

During fiscal year 2011, the Company entered into a number of agreements with CPTC, a variable interest entity that
was established to finance and operate the Scripps Proton Therapy Center in San Diego, California.

In April 2010, the Company signed an $88 million agreement to supply a proton therapy system to CPTC. The
Company began recognizing revenues under this contract in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011. In June 2011, the
Company signed a ten-year, approximately $60 million agreement with CPTC to service the proton therapy system
which commenced in the quarter ended December 27, 2013. In addition, in September 2011, ORIX and the Company,
through its Swiss subsidiary, committed to loan up to $165.3 million to CPTC. ORIX is the loan agent for this facility
and, along with CPTC and Scripps, has budgetary approval authority for the Scripps Proton Therapy Center. The
Company’s maximum loan commitment under this facility is $115.3 million, reflecting the Company’s pro rata share of
69.75% of the obligation to fund the initial distribution and subsequent advances. As of December 27, 2013, the
Company had loaned $74.0 million (including accrued interest) of its $115.3 million commitment, which is reported
as a current asset on the Company’s Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company’s subsidiary is not
obligated to fund any additional amounts to CPTC beyond the $115.3 million committed under the loan facility. The
Company may sell all or a portion of its participation in this loan facility before the end of the drawdown period in
2014. Upon the sale of all or a portion of this facility, the Company will not be required to make further loan advances
for the portion of the facility that is sold.

The loan, which matures in September 2015, bears interest at the London Interbank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”) plus

6.25% per annum with a minimum interest rate of 8.25% per annum. The loan can be extended for two additional
one-year terms at the election of CPTC during which extensions interest will accrue at LIBOR plus 7.00% per annum
with a minimum interest rate of 9.00% per annum. Interest only payments are due monthly in arrears until July 1,
2014, at which time monthly payments based on amortization of the principal balance over a 15-year period at an
interest rate of 8.25% become due and payable. If all or a portion of the principal is repaid on or before July 1, 2014,
interest that would have been payable had the principal not been repaid early is due and payable. The Company, as

one of the lenders, is entitled to certain fees, including a commitment fee of 1.5% of the loan facility commitment
amount and an exit fee of 1% of the amount of principal paid, whether as a result of prepayment or maturity. The loan
facility is collateralized by all of the assets of the Scripps Proton Therapy Center. In connection with the loan facility,
the Company’s subsidiary also shares 4% of the gross revenues of the Scripps Proton Therapy Center for 35 years. The
Company’s subsidiary’s right of revenue sharing may be reduced upon the sale of a portion of the Company’s loan and
will be reduced to an amount not to exceed 1% of the gross revenues of the Scripps Proton Therapy Center upon
repayment of the first $71 million of the Company’s loan amount. The Company has not sold any portion of its loan to
date.

The Company has determined that CPTC is a variable interest entity and that the Company holds a significant variable
interest of CPTC through its subsidiary’s participation in the loan facility and its agreements to supply and service the
proton therapy equipment. The Company has concluded that it is not the primary beneficiary of CPTC. The Company
has no voting rights, has no approval authority or veto rights for CPTC’s budget, and does not have the power to direct
patient recruitment, clinical operations and management of the Scripps Proton Therapy Center, which the Company
believes are the matters that most significantly affect CPTC’s economic performance.
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As of December 27, 2013, in addition to the $74.0 million loan to CPTC, the Company had recorded $49.9 million in
accounts receivable from CPTC, which includes unbilled accounts receivable. As of September 27, 2013, the
outstanding loan balance to CPTC was $62.7 million and the accounts receivable balance from CPTC was $48.4
million, which includes unbilled accounts receivable. The Company’s exposure to loss as a result of its involvement
with CPTC was limited to the carrying amounts of these assets on its Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

16. STRATEGIC ARRANGEMENT

In April 2012, VMS entered into a strategic global partnership with Siemens through which, among other things, the
Company and Siemens are working on developing interfaces to enable the Company’s ARIAP oncology information
system software to connect with Siemens linear accelerators and imaging systems. Under the agreement establishing
this collaboration, the Company committed to make certain payments, including up to $10 million in fixed fees and
$20 million in license fees, in the event certain product development milestones are achieved. The Company will also
pay for additional licenses beyond the minimum quantities set forth in the agreement. The Company made fixed fees
payments to Siemens of $2.0 million during the three months ended December 27, 2013 and as of December 27, 2013
had accrued $0.5 million of the fixed fees under the terms of the agreement. As of December 27, 2013, no amount
related to achievement of product development milestones was payable under this agreement.
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In addition, pursuant to this agreement, the Company represents Siemens diagnostic imaging products to radiation
oncology clinics in most international markets and in North America, and Siemens, in turn, represents the Company’s
equipment and software products for radiotherapy and radiosurgery within its offerings to its healthcare customers in
agreed upon countries. The Company receives commissions from Siemens for sales agency activities provided to
Siemens and makes commission payments to Siemens for sales agency activities provided to the Company as part of
this agreement. The Company incurred commissions expense of approximately $0.2 million during the three months
ended December 27, 2013 relating to this agreement. The Company did not incur any commissions expense during the
three months ended December 28, 2012 relating to this agreement. This agreement also provides a framework for
both companies to explore opportunities to co-develop new imaging and treatment solutions in the future.

17. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s operations are grouped into two reportable operating segments: Oncology Systems and X-Ray

Products. These reportable operating segments were determined based on how the Company’s Chief Executive Officer,
its Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM?”), views and evaluates the Company’s operations. The Company’s Ginzton
Technology Center, Security and Inspection Products business and Varian Particle Therapy business are reflected in

the “Other” category because these operating segments do not meet the criteria of a reportable operating segment. The
CODM allocates resources to and evaluates the financial performance of each operating segment primarily based on
operating earnings.

The following table summarizes selected operating results information for each business segment:

Three Months Ended
December 2 December 28,
(In millions) 2013 2012
Revenues
Oncology Systems $ 542 $ 524
X-Ray Products 145 133
Total reportable segments $ 687 $ 657
Other 25 21
Total company $ 712 $ 678

Operating Earnings (Loss)

Oncology Systems $ 121 $ 120

51



26

Edgar Filing: VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS INC - Form 10-Q

X-Ray Products

39

Total reportable segments $ 160

Other
Corporate
Total company

(13
5
$ 142

)
)

$

$

34
154
(11
6
137
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Varian Medical Systems, Inc.:

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet of Varian Medical Systems, Inc. and its
subsidiaries as of December 27, 2013, and the related condensed consolidated statements of earnings and of
comprehensive earnings for the three-month periods ended December 27, 2013 and December 28, 2012, and the
condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for the three-month periods ended December 27, 2013 and
December 28, 2012. These interim financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.

We conducted our review in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). A review of interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and
making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an
audit conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole.
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
condensed consolidated interim financial statements for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

We previously audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheet as of September 27, 2013, and the related consolidated statements of earnings
and of comprehensive earnings, of stockholders’ equity, and of cash flows for the year then ended (not presented
herein), and in our report dated November 26, 2013, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated
financial statements. In our opinion, the information set forth in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance
sheet as of September 27, 2013, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated balance sheet
from which it has been derived.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California

January 30, 2014

27

53



Edgar Filing: VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS INC - Form 10-Q

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains “forward-looking” statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, which provides a “safe harbor” for statements about future events, products and future
financial performance that are based on the beliefs of, estimates made by, and information currently available to the
management of Varian Medical Systems, Inc. (“VMS”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “we,” “our” or the “Company”). The
outcome of the events described in these forward-looking statements is subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual

results and the outcome or timing of certain events may differ significantly from those projected in these

forward-looking statements or management’s current expectations due to the factors cited in this “Management’s

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” (“MD&A”), the Risk Factors listed under

Part II, Item 1A of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, and other factors described from time to time in our other

filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (‘“SEC”), or other reasons. For this purpose, statements

concerning: industry or market segment outlook; market acceptance of or transition to new products or technology

such as fixed field intensity-modulated radiation therapy (“IMRT”), image-guided radiation therapy (“IGRT”), stereotactic
radiosurgery, volumetric modulated arc therapy, brachytherapy, software, treatment techniques, proton therapy and

advanced X-Ray Products; growth drivers; future orders, revenues, backlog, earnings or other financial results; and

any statements using the terms “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “can,” “should,” “would,” “could,” “estimate,” “may,” “inten
“potential,” and “possible” or similar statements are forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties that
could cause our actual results and the outcome and timing of certain events to differ materially from those projected or
management’s current expectations. By making forward-looking statements, we have not assumed any obligation to,

and you should not expect us to, update or revise those statements because of new information, future events or

otherwise.

LT

Overview

In the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, revenues increased 5%, gross margin increased 0.6 percentage points and net
earnings increased 3% compared to the year-ago quarter. Net earnings per diluted share increased 6% in the first
quarter of fiscal year 2014 over the year-ago quarter. Gross orders for Oncology Systems increased 5% while gross
orders for X-Ray Products decreased 19% in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 compared to the year-ago quarter.
Our backlog at December 27, 2013 was 1% lower than at the end of the first quarter of fiscal year 2013.

In order to assist with the assessment of how our underlying businesses performed, we compare the percentage change
in revenues and gross orders from one period to another, excluding the effect of foreign currency fluctuations (i.e.,
using constant currency exchange rates). To present this information on a constant currency basis, we convert current
period revenues and gross orders in currencies other than U.S. Dollars into U.S. Dollars using the comparable prior
period’s average exchange rate. The U.S. Dollar strengthened against the Japanese Yen and weakened against Euro in
the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, but the combined impact of currency exchange rates did not have a significant
impact on our revenues and orders. In the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, our total revenues increased 6% in constant
currency and gross orders for Oncology Systems increased 5% in constant currency, each over the prior-year quarter.

Oncology Systems. Our largest business segment is Oncology Systems, which designs, manufactures, sells and
services hardware and software products for treating cancer with conventional radiotherapy (including IMRT, IGRT
and volumetric modulated arc therapy), stereotactic body radiotherapy, stereotactic radiotherapy, stereotactic
radiosurgery and brachytherapy.
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Our primary goal in the Oncology Systems business is to promote the adoption of more advanced and effective cancer
treatments. In our view, the fundamental market forces that drive long-term growth in our Oncology Systems business
are the rise in cancer cases; technology advances and product developments that are leading to improvements in
patient care; customer demand for the more advanced and effective cancer treatments that we enable; competitive
conditions among hospitals and clinics to offer such advanced treatments; continued improvement in safety and cost
efficiency in delivering radiation therapy; and underserved medical needs outside of the United States. Over the last
few years, we have seen a greater percentage of Oncology Systems gross orders and revenues coming from emerging
markets within our international region, which typically demand lower-priced products compared to developed
markets. Reimbursement rates in the United States have generally supported a favorable return on investment for the
purchase of new radiotherapy equipment. While we believe that improved product functionality, greater
cost-effectiveness and prospects for better clinical outcomes with new capabilities such as IMRT, IGRT and
volumetric modulated arc therapy tend to drive demand for radiotherapy products, large changes in reimbursement
rates or reimbursement structure can affect customer demand and cause market shifts. We do not know what impact
the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (the “Affordable Care Act”) in the United States will have on long-term
growth or demand for our products and services. We believe, however, that growth of the radiation oncology market
in the United States is being impacted as customers’ decision-making processes are complicated by the uncertainties
surrounding the Affordable Care Act and reimbursement rates for radiotherapy and radiosurgery, and that this
uncertainty will likely continue into the next fiscal year and result in a high degree of variability of gross orders and
revenue from quarter-to-quarter. We also believe that the Affordable Care Act is causing healthcare providers to
re-evaluate their business models and we are seeing increased consolidation of hospitals and clinics and more
integration of systems and equipment across multi-site healthcare networks, which is impacting transaction size,
timing and purchasing processes, and also contributing to the increased variability. We continued to see signs that the
Affordable Care Act is causing decision-makers at treatment centers to sharpen their focus on both clinical efficacy
and cost efficiency. In accordance with the Affordable Care Act, in the second quarter of fiscal year 2013, we began to
incur the 2.3% excise tax on sales of medical devices (including our Oncology Systems products) in the United States,
which has had and may continue to have a negative impact on our gross margin and/or may lead our customers to
reduce their orders for our products. In the radiation oncology markets outside of North America, for the shorter term,
we expect the market growth of our European region (which includes Europe, the Middle East, India and Africa) will
be mixed, with stronger market growth in Eastern Europe, the Middle East, Africa and India, offset by lower market
growth in Southern Europe which is facing severe economic challenges. Our outlook for Asia and the rest of world
remains robust and, overall, we believe the longer-term global radiation oncology market can grow, on average, in the
mid-single-digit range.

In the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, Oncology Systems North American gross orders increased 13% and Oncology
Systems international orders decreased 2% over the year-ago quarter. On a constant currency basis, Oncology Systems
international gross orders decreased 1% in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 compared to the year-ago quarter.
During the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, the increase in Oncology Systems North American orders was due to a
broad-base increase in hospital purchasing activity. New products including EDGE™ and upgrades for stereotactic
radiosurgery also contributed to our orders growth in North America.

In the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, Oncology Systems total revenues increased 3% over the first quarter of fiscal
year 2013. Oncology Systems gross margin in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 increased 1.0 percentage point from
the first quarter of fiscal year 2013.

X-Ray Products. Our X-Ray Products business segment designs, manufactures, sells and services X-ray imaging
components for use in a range of applications, including radiographic or fluoroscopic imaging, mammography, special
procedures, computed tomography and industrial applications. We continue to view the long-term fundamental growth
driver for this business to be the ongoing success of key X-ray imaging original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”)
that incorporate our X-ray tube products and flat panel detectors into their medical diagnostic, dental, veterinary and
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industrial imaging systems.

In the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, X-Ray Products revenues increased 9% and gross orders decreased 19% over
the year-ago quarter. X-Ray Products gross margin for the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 increased 0.5 percentage
points as compared to the first quarter of fiscal year 2013.

Our success in our X-Ray Products business depends upon our ability to anticipate changes in our markets, the
direction of technological innovation and the demands of our customers. We continue to introduce new products
which we believe will help contribute to the growth of our X-Ray Products business. In addition, changes in access to
diagnostic radiology or the reimbursement rates associated with diagnostic radiology as a result of the Affordable
Care Act and similar state proposals, or otherwise, could affect demand for our products in our X-Ray Products
business.

Other. The “Other” category is comprised of SIP, VPT, and the operations of the Ginzton Technology Center (“GTC”).
(Please refer to Note 17, “Segment Information” to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements within this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q).
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SIP designs, manufactures, sells and services Linatron® X-ray accelerators, imaging processing software and image
detection products for cargo screening at ports and borders and for non-destructive examination and testing in a
variety of applications. Orders and revenues for our SIP products have been and may continue to be unpredictable as
governmental agencies may place large orders with us or our OEM customers in a short time period, and then may not
place any orders for a long time period thereafter.

VPT develops, designs, manufactures, sells and services products and systems for delivering proton therapy, another
form of external beam radiotherapy using proton beams, for the treatment of cancer. Although proton therapy has been
in clinical use for more than four decades, it has not been widely deployed due to high capital cost. Our current focus
is commercializing our ProBeam™ proton therapy system and bringing our expertise in traditional radiation therapy
to proton therapy to improve its clinical utility and to reduce its cost of treatment per patient. Orders and revenues for
our VPT products have been and may continue to be subject to significant variability due to the size of each individual
transaction, and the timing of each transaction may be impacted by numerous factors, including items outside of our
control such as customer project financing.

Subsequent to the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, we received U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) 510(k)
clearance for our updated ProBeam™ proton therapy system.

GTC, our scientific research facility, develops technologies that enhance our current businesses or may lead to new
business areas, including technology to improve radiation therapy and X-ray imaging, as well as other technology for
a variety of applications, including security and cargo screening. GTC is also actively engaged in searching for
chemical or biological agents that work synergistically with radiation to improve treatment outcomes.

Revenues in our “Other” category increased $4 million in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 over the year-ago quarter
due to an increase in VPT revenues. Gross orders in our “Other” category increased $5 million in the first quarter of
fiscal year 2014 compared to the year-ago quarter, due to an increase in SIP orders.

This discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon and should be read in
conjunction with the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes included elsewhere in this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q and the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the related Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 27, 2013 (the “2013 Annual Report”), as well as
the Risk Factors contained in Part II, Item 1A of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, and other information provided
from time to time in our other filings with the SEC.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. These estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and
on various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. We periodically review our
accounting policies, estimates and assumptions and make adjustments when facts and circumstances dictate. In
addition to the accounting policies that are more fully described in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
included in our 2013 Annual Report, we consider the critical accounting policies described below to be affected by
critical accounting estimates. Our critical accounting policies that are affected by accounting estimates include
revenue recognition, share-based compensation expense, valuation of allowance for doubtful accounts, valuation of
inventories, assessment of recoverability of goodwill and intangible assets, valuation of warranty obligations,
assessment of loss contingencies, valuation of defined benefit pension and post-retirement benefit plans, valuation of
derivative instruments and taxes on earnings. Such accounting policies require us to use judgments, often as a result of
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the need to make estimates and assumptions regarding matters that are inherently uncertain, and actual results could
differ materially from these estimates. For a discussion of how these estimates and other factors may affect our
business, see Part II, Item 1A, “Risk Factors.”

Revenue Recognition

We frequently enter into sales arrangements with customers that contain multiple elements or deliverables such as
hardware, software and services. Judgments as to the allocation of consideration from an arrangement to the multiple
elements of the arrangement, and the appropriate timing of revenue recognition are critical with respect to these
arrangements to ensure compliance with GAAP.
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The allocation of consideration in a multiple element arrangement is affected by the determination of whether any
software deliverables that function together with other hardware components to deliver the hardware products’

essential functionality are considered as non-software products for purpose of revenue recognition. The allocation of
consideration to each non-software deliverable is based on the assumptions we use to establish its selling price, which
are based on vendor-specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) of selling price, if it exists, otherwise, third-party evidence of
selling price, if it exists, and if not on estimated selling prices. In addition, the allocation of consideration to each
software deliverable in a multiple element arrangement is affected by our judgment as to whether VSOE of its fair

value exists in these arrangements.

Changes to the elements in an arrangement and the amounts allocated to each element could affect the timing and
amount of revenue recognition. Revenue recognition also depends on the timing of shipment, the readiness of
customers’ facilities for installation or is subject to customer acceptance. If shipments or installations are not made on
scheduled timelines or if the products are not accepted by the customer in a timely manner, our reported revenues may
differ materially from expectations.

In addition, revenues related to certain highly customized image detection systems, proton therapy systems and proton
therapy system commissioning contracts are recognized in accordance with contract accounting. We recognize
contract revenues under the percentage-of-completion method which are based on contract costs incurred to date
compared with total estimated contract costs. Changes in estimates of total contract revenue, total contract cost or the
extent of progress towards completion are recognized in the period in which the changes in estimates are identified.
Estimated losses on contracts are recognized in the period in which the loss is identified. In circumstances in which
the final outcome of a contract cannot be precisely estimated but a loss on the contract is not expected, we recognize
revenues under the percentage-of-completion method based on a zero profit margin until more precise estimates can
be made. If and when we can make more precise estimates, revenues and costs of revenues are adjusted in the same
period. Because the percentage-of-completion method involves considerable use of estimates in determining revenues,
costs and profits and in assigning the dollar amounts to relevant accounting periods, and because the estimates must be
periodically reviewed and appropriately adjusted, if our estimates prove to be inaccurate or circumstances change over
time, we may be forced to adjust revenues or even record a contract loss in later periods.

Share-based Compensation Expense

We value our stock options granted and the option component of the shares of VMS common stock purchased under
the employee stock purchase plan using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. We value our performance units
using the Monte Carlo simulation model. The determination of fair value of share-based payment awards on the date
of grant under both the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the Monte Carlo simulation model is affected by
VMS’s stock price, as well as the input of other subjective assumptions, including the expected terms of share-based
awards and the expected price volatilities of shares of VMS common stock and peer companies that are used to assess
certain performance targets over the expected term of the awards, and the dividend yield of VMS.
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The expected term of our stock options is based on the observed and expected time to post-vesting exercise and
post-vesting cancellations of stock options by our employees. We determine the expected term of stock options based
on the demographic grouping of employees and retirement eligibility. We use a combination of historical and implied
volatility, or blended volatility, in deriving the expected volatility assumption for our stock options. Blended volatility
represents the weighted average of implied volatility and historical volatility. Implied volatility is derived based on
traded options on VMS common stock. Implied volatility is weighted in the calculation of blended volatility based on
the ratio of the term of the exchange-traded options to the expected terms of the employee stock options. Historical
volatility represents the remainder of the weighting. Our decision to incorporate implied volatility was based on our
assessment that implied volatility of publicly traded options on VMS common stock is reflective of market conditions
and is generally reflective of both historical volatility and expectations of how future volatility will differ from
historical volatility. In determining the extent of use of implied volatility, we considered: (i) the volume of market
activity of traded options; (ii) the ability to reasonably match the input variables of traded options to those of stock
options granted by us, including the date of grant; (iii) the similarity of the exercise prices; and (iv) the length of term
of traded options. After considering the above factors, we determined that we could not rely exclusively on implied
volatility based on the fact that the term of VMS exchange-traded options is less than one year and that it is different
from the expected terms of the stock options we grant. Therefore, we believe a combination of the historical volatility
over the expected terms of the stock options we grant and the implied volatility of exchange-traded options best
reflects the expected volatility of VMS common stock. In determining the grant date fair value of our performance
units, historical volatilities of shares of VMS common stock, as well as the shares of common stock of peer
companies, were used to assess certain performance targets. The risk-free interest rate assumption is based upon
observed interest rates appropriate for the term of our stock awards. The dividend yield assumption is based on our
history and expectation of no dividend payouts. If factors change and we employ different assumptions in future
periods, the compensation expense that we record may differ significantly from what we have recorded in the current
period. In addition, we are required to estimate the expected forfeiture rate, as well as the probability that certain
performance conditions that affect the vesting of performance units will be achieved, and recognize expense only for
those awards expected to vest. If the actual forfeiture rate and/or the actual number of performance units that vest
based on achievement of performance conditions are materially different from our estimates, the share-based
compensation expense could be significantly different from what we have recorded in the current period.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We evaluate the creditworthiness of our customers prior to authorizing shipment for all major sale transactions.
Except for government tenders, group purchases and orders with letters of credit in Oncology Systems and SIP, and
orders in our X-Ray Products business, our payment terms usually require payment of a small portion of the total
amount due when the customer signs the purchase order, a significant amount upon transfer of risk of loss to the
customer and the remaining amount upon completion of the installation. On a quarterly basis, we evaluate aged items
in the accounts receivable aging report and provide an allowance in an amount we deem adequate for doubtful
accounts. If our evaluation of our customers’ financial conditions does not reflect our future ability to collect
outstanding receivables, additional provisions may be needed and our operating results could be negatively affected.

Inventories

Our inventories include high technology parts and components that are highly specialized in nature and that are
subject to rapid technological obsolescence. We have programs to minimize the required inventories on hand and we
regularly review inventory quantities on hand and on order and adjust for excess and obsolete inventory based
primarily on historical usage rates and our estimates of product demand and production. Actual demand may differ
from our estimates, in which case we may have understated or overstated the provision required for obsolete and
excess inventory, which would have an impact on our operating results.
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill is initially recorded when the purchase price paid for a business acquisition exceeds the estimated fair value
of the net identified tangible and intangible assets acquired. The majority of businesses that we have acquired have not
had significant identified tangible assets and, as a result, we have typically allocated a significant portion of the
purchase price to intangible assets and goodwill. Our future operating performance will be impacted by the future
amortization of these acquired intangible assets and potential impairment charges related to these intangibles or to
goodwill if indicators of impairment exist. The allocation of the purchase price from business acquisitions to goodwill
and intangible assets could have a significant impact on our future operating results. In addition, the allocation of the
purchase price of the acquired businesses to goodwill and intangible assets requires us to make significant estimates
and assumptions, including estimates of future cash flows expected to be generated by the acquired assets and the
appropriate discount rate for those cash flows. Should conditions differ from management’s estimates at the time of the
acquisition, material write-downs of intangible assets and/or goodwill may be required, which would adversely affect
our operating results.
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We evaluate goodwill for impairment at least annually or whenever an event occurs or circumstances change that
would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. If we determine that a
quantitative analysis is necessary, the impairment test for goodwill is a two-step process. Step one consists of a
comparison of the fair value of a reporting unit against its carrying amount, including the goodwill allocated to each
reporting unit. We determine the fair value of our reporting units based on a combination of income and market
approaches. The income approach is based on the present value of estimated future cash flows of the reporting units
and the market approach is based on a market multiple calculated for each business unit based on market data of other
companies engaged in similar business. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit is in excess of its fair value, step
two requires the comparison of the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill against the carrying amount of
the reporting unit’s goodwill. Any excess of the carrying value of the reporting unit’s goodwill over the implied fair
value of the reporting unit’s goodwill is recorded as an impairment loss. The impairment test for intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives, if any, consists of a comparison of fair value to carrying value, with any excess of carrying
value over fair value being recorded as an impairment loss.

Based on the most recent annual goodwill impairment testing that we performed in fiscal year 2013 for each of our
four reporting units with goodwill, Oncology Systems, X-Ray Products, SIP and VPT, the fair value of each such
reporting unit was substantially in excess of its carrying value. However, significant changes in our projections about
our operating results or other factors could cause us to make interim assessments of impairments in any quarter that
could result in some or all of the goodwill being impaired. For our VPT business in particular, which had $61.1
million in goodwill as of December 27, 2013, our estimates as to future operating results include certain assumptions
about factors that cannot be predicted with certainty, including future market conditions, revenue growth rates, and
operating margins.

We will continue to make assessments of impairment on an annual basis or more frequently if indicators of potential
impairment arise.

Warranty Obligations

We warrant most of our products for a specific period of time, usually 12 months from installation, against material
defects. We provide for the estimated future costs of warranty obligations in cost of revenues when the related
revenues are recognized. The accrued warranty costs represent our best estimate at the time of sale of the total costs
that we will incur to repair or replace product parts that fail while still under warranty. The amount of accrued
estimated warranty costs obligation for established products is primarily based on historical experience as to product
failures adjusted for current information on repair costs. For new products, estimates will include historical experience
of similar products, as well as reasonable allowance for start-up expenses. Actual warranty costs could differ from the
estimated amounts. On a quarterly basis, we review the accrued balances of our warranty obligations and update the
historical warranty cost trends, if required. If we were required to accrue additional warranty costs in the future, it
would have a negative effect on our operating results.

Loss Contingencies

From time to time, we are a party to or otherwise involved in legal proceedings, claims and government inspections or
investigations or other legal matters, both inside and outside the United States, arising in the ordinary course of its
business or otherwise. We accrue amounts, to the extent they can be reasonably estimated, that we believe are
adequate to address any liabilities related to legal proceedings and other loss contingencies that we believe will result
in a probable loss. However, such matters are subject to many uncertainties and outcomes are not predictable with
assurance. If actual liabilities significantly exceed the estimates made, our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows could be materially adversely affected.
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In addition, we are subject to a variety of environmental laws around the world. Those laws regulate multiple aspects
of our operations, including the handling, storage, transport and disposal of hazardous substances. They impose costs
on our operations. In connection with our past and present operations and facilities, we record environmental
remediation liabilities when we conclude that environmental assessments or remediation efforts are probable and we
believe we can reasonably estimate the costs of those efforts. Our accrued environmental costs represent our best
estimate of the total costs of assessments and remediation and the time period over which we expect to incur those
costs. We review these accrued balances quarterly. If we were required to increase or decrease the accrued
environmental costs in the future, it would adversely or favorably impact our operating results.
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Defined Benefit Pension and Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

We sponsor five defined benefit pension plans in Germany (where we have two defined benefit pension plans), Japan,
Switzerland and the United Kingdom covering employees who meet the applicable eligibility requirements in these
countries. In fiscal year 2012, we terminated one pension plan in Germany upon the death of the last participant in the
plan. Although we do not have any defined benefit pension plans in the United States, we sponsor a post-retirement
benefit plan that provides healthcare benefits to certain eligible retirees. Several statistical and other factors that
attempt to anticipate future events are used in calculating the expenses and liabilities related to those plans for which
the benefits are actuarially determined, such as our defined benefit pension and post-retirement benefit plans. These
factors include assumptions about the discount rate, expected return on plan assets, rate of future compensation
increases and rate of healthcare cost increases, all of which we determine within certain guidelines. In addition, we
also use assumptions, such as withdrawal and mortality rates, to calculate the expenses and liabilities. The actuarial
assumptions we use are long-term assumptions and may differ materially from actual experience particularly in the
short term due to changing market and economic conditions and changing participant demographics. These
differences may have a significant impact on the amount of defined benefit pension and post-retirement benefit plan
expenses we record.

The expected rates of return on the various defined benefit pension plans’ assets are based on the asset allocation of
each plan and the long-term projected return on those assets. The discount rate enables us to state expected future cash
flows at a present value on the measurement date. The discount rates used for defined benefit plans in all countries are
based primarily on the yields of a universe of high quality corporate bonds in each applicable country or the spot rate
of high quality AA-rated corporate bonds, with durations corresponding to the expected durations of the benefit
obligations. A change in the discount rate will cause the present value of benefit obligations to change in the opposite
direction.

Valuation of Derivative Instruments

We use foreign currency forward contracts to reduce the effects of currency rate fluctuations on sales transactions
denominated in foreign currencies and on assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. These foreign
currency forward contracts are derivative instruments and are measured at fair value. There are three levels of inputs
that may be used to measure fair value (see Note 3, “Fair Value” of the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements). Each level of input has different levels of subjectivity and difficulty involved in determining fair value.
The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts are calculated primarily using Level 2 inputs, which include
currency spot and forward rates, interest rate and credit or non-performance risk. The spot rate for each currency is the
same spot rate used for all balance sheet translations at the measurement date and sourced from our major trading
banks. The forward point values for each currency and the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) to discount assets
and liabilities are interpolated from commonly quoted broker services. One year credit default swap spreads of the
counterparty at the measurement date are used to adjust derivative assets, all of which mature in 13 months or less, for
non-performance risk. We are required to adjust derivative liabilities to reflect the potential non-performance risk to
lenders based on our incremental borrowing rate. Each contract is individually adjusted using the counterparty credit
default swap rates (for net assets) or our borrowing rate (for net liabilities). The use of Level 2 inputs in determining
fair values requires certain management judgment and subjectivity. Changes to these Level 2 inputs could have a
material impact on the valuation of our derivative instruments, as well as on our result of operations. There were no
transfers of assets or liabilities between fair value measurement levels during the first three months of fiscal years

2014 and 2013.

Taxes on Earnings
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We are subject to taxes on earnings in both the United States and numerous foreign jurisdictions. As a global taxpayer,
significant judgments and estimates are required in evaluating our tax positions and determining our provision for
taxes on earnings.

The accounting for uncertainty in income taxes requires a two-step approach to recognizing, derecognizing and
measuring uncertain tax positions. The first step is to evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining whether
the weight of available evidence indicates that it is more likely than not that, based on the technical merits, the
position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation processes, if any. The second
step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely of being realized upon settlement.
Recognition, derecognition and measurement are based on management’s best judgment given the facts, circumstances
and information available at the end of the accounting period. A tax benefit should be recognized in the first period in
which it meets the more likely than not recognition threshold, and conversely, a tax benefit previously recognized
should be derecognized in the first period in which new information results in a change in judgment in which the
position fails to meet the recognition threshold. A benefit not previously recognized would be recognized when the tax
position is effectively settled through examination, negotiation or litigation with tax authorities, or when the statute of
limitations for the relevant taxing authority to examine and challenge the position has expired. Our policy is to include
interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits within the provision for taxes on earnings.
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Generally, the carrying value of our net deferred tax assets assumes that we will be able to generate sufficient future

taxable earnings in the applicable tax jurisdictions to utilize these deferred tax assets. Should we conclude it is more
likely than not that we will be unable to recover our net deferred tax assets in these tax jurisdictions, we would
increase our valuation allowance and our tax provision would increase in the period in which we make such a

determination.

Our foreign earnings are generally taxed at rates lower than U.S. rates. Our effective tax rate is impacted by existing

tax laws in both the United States and in the respective countries in which our foreign subsidiaries do business. In
addition, a decrease in the percentage of our total earnings from our foreign countries, or a change in the mix of
foreign countries among particular tax jurisdictions could increase or decrease our effective tax rate. Our current
effective tax rate does not assume U.S. taxes on certain undistributed profits of certain foreign subsidiaries. These

earnings could become subject to incremental foreign withholding or U.S. federal and state taxes should they either be

deemed or actually remitted to the United States.
Results of Operations

Fiscal Year

Our fiscal year is the 52- or 53-week period ending on the Friday nearest September 30. Fiscal year 2014 is a 52-week
period ending September 26, 2014, and fiscal year 2013 was a 52-week period ended September 27, 2013. The fiscal
quarters ended December 27, 2013 and December 28, 2012 were both 13-week periods.

Discussion of Results of Operations for the First Quarter of Fiscal year 2014 Compared to the First Quarter of Fiscal

year 2013

Total Revenues

Revenues by sales classification
(Dollars in millions)
Product

Service (1)
Total Revenues

Product as a percentage of total revenues
Service as a percentage of total revenues

Revenues by region

North America
Europe
Asia

Three Months Ended
DecemberDécember 28, Percent
2013 2012 Change
$481.4 $ 468.0 3 %
230.1 210.4 9 %
$7115 $ 678.4 5 %
68 % 69 %
32 % 31 %
$2755 $ 292.0 (6 %)
239.5 193.5 24 %
169.3 160.2 6 %
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Rest of world 27.2 32.7
Total International (2) 436.0 386.4
Total $711.5 $ 6784

North America as a percentage of total revenues 39 % 43
International as a percentage of total revenues 61 % 57

(1)Service revenues include revenues from parts sold by the service department.
(2) We consider international revenues to be revenues outside of North America.
The increase in total revenues in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 over the year-ago period was due to increases

from Oncology Systems, X-Ray Products and revenues in the Other category.

17
13

%
%

%)
%

%

For the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, the increase in product revenues was primarily due to an increase in revenues

from X-Ray Products and to a lesser extent an increase in product revenues in the Other category, each over the

year-ago period.

Service revenues increased in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 over the year-ago period, primarily due to an

increase in service revenues from Oncology Systems.
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The decrease in total North American revenues in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 over the year-ago period was
primarily due to a decrease in revenues in Oncology Systems.

International revenues increased in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 over the year-ago period due to increases in
international revenues in Oncology Systems, X-Ray Products and the Other category.

In the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, the U.S. Dollar was stronger against the Japanese Yen and weaker against the
Euro. The currency exchange rates impacted revenues in Europe and Asia regions; however, the combined effect of
currency exchange rates did not significantly impact our overall revenues. On a constant currency basis, international
revenues increased 15% during the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 compared to the year-ago period.

Oncology Systems Revenues

Revenues by sales classification Three Months Ended
DecemberDécember 28, Percent

(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 Change

Product $317.8 $ 319.1 0 %

Service 223.6 205.2 9 %

Total Oncology Systems revenues $541.4 $ 5243 3 %

Product as a percentage of Oncology Systems revenues 59 % 61 %

Service as a percentage of Oncology Systems revenues 41 % 39 %

Oncology Systems revenues as a percentage of total revenues 76 % 77 %

Oncology Systems product revenues were relatively flat in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 compared to the
year-ago quarter. Within Oncology Systems product revenues, TrueBeam linear accelerators revenue increased as a
percentage of overall accelerator revenue. The increases in Oncology Systems service revenues in the first quarter of
fiscal year 2014 over the year-ago periods were primarily driven by increased customer adoption of service contracts
as the warranty period on our TrueBeam systems start to expire and by an increased number of customers as the
installed base of our products continues to grow.

Revenues by region Three Months Ended
DecemberD@cember 28, Percent
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 Change
North America $2249 $ 241.1 7 %)
Europe 189.5 155.3 22 %
Asia 101.7 96.6 5 %
Rest of world 253 31.3 (19 %)
Total International 316.5 283.2 12 %
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Total Oncology Systems revenues $5414 $ 5243 3 %
North America as a percentage of Oncology Systems revenues 42 % 46 %
International as a percentage of Oncology Systems revenues 58 % 54 %

The decrease in North American Oncology Systems revenues in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 over the first
quarter of fiscal year 2013 was primarily due to a decrease in revenues from sales of high energy linear accelerators,
partially offset by an increase in revenues from service.

The increase in Oncology Systems’ international revenues for the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 over the first quarter
of fiscal year 2013 was primarily due to increases in revenues from Europe and Asia partially offset by a decrease in
revenues from the rest of world region. The increases in revenues from Europe and Asia were primarily due to
increases in revenues from sales of high energy accelerators and service. The decrease in revenues from rest of world
region during the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 over the year-ago quarter was primarily due to a decrease in
revenues from sales of high energy linear accelerators and other hardware products.

The U.S. Dollar was stronger against the Japanese Yen and weaker against the Euro in the first quarter of fiscal year
2014 compared to the year-ago quarter. The currency exchange rates impacted Oncology revenues in Europe and
Asia regions; however, the combined effect of currency exchange rates did not significantly impact our Oncology
Systems international revenues.
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Varying cycles of higher and lower revenues between the North American and international regions are impacted by
regional influences, which recently have included government economic stimulus programs, the recession and the
pace of economic recovery, the European sovereign debt crisis, uncertainty created by healthcare reform (such as the
excise tax on the sale of most medical devices, Medicare reimbursement rates and consolidation of free standing
clinics in the United States), and different technology adoption cycles that are consistent with the gross order patterns.
See further discussion of orders under “Gross Orders.”

X-Ray Products Revenues

Revenues by region Three Months Ended
DecemberDécember 28, Percent
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 Change
North America $420 $ 403 4 %
Europe 35.8 28.7 25 %
Asia 66.0 62.5 5 %
Rest of world 1.2 1.4 (11 %)
Total International 103.0 92.6 11 %
Total X-Ray Products Revenues $145.0 $ 1329 9 %
North America as a percentage of X-Ray Products revenues 29 % 30 %
International as a percentage of X-Ray Products revenues 71 % 70 %
X-Ray Products revenues as a percentage of total revenues 20 % 20 %

X-Ray Products revenues increased in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 over the respective year-ago periods due to
increased revenues from all the regions except for a slight decrease in the rest of world region in the first quarter of
fiscal year 2014 compared to the year-ago period. X-Ray Products revenues increased during the first quarter of fiscal
year 2014 compared to the year-ago period due to increased revenues from sales of X-ray flat panel products in all
regions and due to increased revenues from X-ray tube products in Europe.

The difference in currency exchange rates between the U.S. Dollar and foreign currencies between the first quarter of
fiscal year 2014 and the first quarter of fiscal year 2013 did not have a material impact on X-Ray Products
international revenue because sales transactions in the X-Ray Products business are primarily denominated in U.S.
Dollars.

Other Revenues

Revenues by sales classification Three Months Ended
Decembeb2@ember 28, Percent
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 Change
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Product $186 $ 16.0 16 %
Service 6.5 52 24 %
$25.1 $ 212 18 %

Total Other revenues

Other revenues as a percentage of total revenues 4 % 3 %
Revenues in our “Other” category, which is comprised of SIP, VPT and GTC, increased in the first quarter of fiscal year

2014 over the year-ago period, primarily due to an increase in VPT product revenues.
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Gross Margin

Three Months Ended

DecemberDécember 28, Percent
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Dollars by segment
Oncology Systems $243.1 $ 230.1 6 %
X-Ray Products 61.2 55.4 11 %
Other 5.3 5.6 S5 D)
Gross margin $309.6 $ 291.1 6 %

Percentage by segment

Oncology Systems 449 9% 439 %
X-Ray Products 422 %  41.7 %
Total Company 435 % 429 %

The increase in total Company gross margin percentage for the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 over the year-ago
period was primarily due to increases in Oncology Systems and X-Ray Products gross margin percentages.

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, the dollar amount of Oncology Systems gross margin increased, as
compared to the year-ago quarter, due to an increase in service volume and improved quality costs.

For the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, Oncology Systems products gross margin percentage increased to 37.4%
compared with the first quarter of fiscal year 2013 at 35.6%. The increase in Oncology Systems product gross margin
percentage was primarily due to lower retrofit and warranty costs. Oncology Systems service gross margin was 55.6%
in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, compared to 56.8% in the first quarter of fiscal year 2013. The slight decrease
in the Oncology Systems service gross margin was primarily due to an unfavorable geographic mix. We believe the
shift of Oncology Systems revenues towards emerging markets will generally continue and may negatively impact
Oncology Systems gross margins.

For the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, X-Ray Products gross margin amount and gross margin percentage increased,
compared to the year-ago period due to increased volume and improved quality costs in both X-ray tube and X-ray flat

panel products.

The gross margin in the Other category decreased marginally in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 over the year-ago
period primarily due to a decrease in gross margin in SIP.

Research and Development

Three Months Ended

Decembeb2@ember 28, Percent
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 Change

$580 $ 47.1 23 %
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Research and development

As a percentage of total revenues 8.2 % 6.9 %
The $10.9 million increase in research and development expenses for the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 compared to
the first quarter of fiscal year 2013 was primarily due to an increase in expenses of $7.8 million in Oncology Systems,
an increase in expenses of $2 million in the Other category and an increase in expenses of $1.1 million in X-Ray
Products. The $7.8 million increase in expenses in Oncology Systems was due to expenses relating to new product
development projects and enhancement of existing products. The increase in expenses of $2 million in the Other
category was due to expenses relating to new product development projects and a net increase in costs associated with
increased headcount to support our growing business activities in VPT. The $1.1 million increase in expenses in
X-Ray Products was due to new product development projects and enhancement of existing flat panel products.
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Selling, General and Administrative

Three Months Ended

DecemberDécember 28, Percent
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Selling, general and administrative $109.6  $ 106.5 3 %
As a percentage of total revenues 154 %  15.7 %

The $3.1 million increase in selling, general and administrative expenses for the first quarter of fiscal year 2014
compared to the first quarter of fiscal year 2013 was primarily attributable to: (a) a $7.7 million net increase in
employee-related costs, in part for increased headcount to support our growing business activities; (b) a $1.8 million
increase in legal fees; and (c) a $1.6 million increase in loss recognized on our equity investment in dpiX Holding
LLC. These changes were partially offset by a decrease of $4.1 million due to no restructuring charges incurred in the
first quarter of fiscal year 2014 and a decrease in bad debt expense of $4 million.

Interest Income (Expense), Net

Three Months Ended

Decenbec&nber 28, Percent
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Interest income, net $0.4 $ 0.7 45 %)

For the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, the net decrease in interest income, net of interest expense, over the year-ago
period was primarily due to higher interest expense associated with increased borrowings from our credit facilities,
partially offset by higher interest income generated from our loan to California Proton Treatment Center, LLC
(“CPTC”).

Taxes on Earnings

Three Months Ended

Decemb®&&mber 28, Percent

2013 2012 Change
Effective tax rate 31.2% 31.0 % 02 %

The increase in our effective tax rate in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 compared to first quarter of fiscal year
2013 was primarily due to the geographic mix of earnings.

Our effective tax rate is impacted by the percentage of our total earnings that come from our international region, the
mix of particular tax jurisdictions within our international region, changes in the valuation of our deferred tax assets or

liabilities, and changes in tax laws or interpretations of those laws. We also expect that our effective tax rate may
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experience increased fluctuation from period to period. See Note 13, “Taxes on Earnings” of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in our 2013 Annual Report.

Net Earnings Per Diluted Share

Three Months Ended

Decemtde@éinber 28, Percent

2013 2012 Change
Net earnings per diluted share $0.91 $ 0.86 6 %

The increase in earnings per diluted share in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 over the year-ago period was due to
an increase in total revenues, increase in gross margin percentage and a reduction in the number of diluted shares of
common stock outstanding due to stock repurchases, partially offset by an increase in operating expenses and a slight
increase in the effective tax rate.
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Gross Orders

Total Gross Orders (by segment and region) Three Months Ended
DecembeD@dember 28, Percent

(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Oncology Systems:

North America $258.6 $ 229.7 13 %
Total International 274.7 279.1 2 %)
Total Oncology Systems $533.3 $ 508.8 5 %

X-Ray Products:

North America $219 $ 455 52 %)
Total International 86.3 88.3 @ %)
Total X-Ray Products $108.2 $ 133.8 19 %)
Other: $139 §$ 9.1 52 %
Total Gross Orders: $6554 $ 651.7 1 %

Beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, we changed the presentation of reported orders from net orders to gross
orders.

Gross orders are defined as the sum of new orders recorded during the period adjusted for any revisions to existing
orders during the period. New orders are recorded for the total contractual amount, excluding certain pass-through
items, once a written agreement for the delivery of goods or provision of services is in place and, for businesses other
than VPT, when shipment of the product (or in the case of certain highly customized products in our SIP business,
construction of the product) is expected to occur within two years, so long as any contingencies are deemed
perfunctory. However, we will not record SIP orders from governmental agencies with bid protest provisions until the
expiration of the bid protest period. For our VPT business, we record orders when construction of the related proton
therapy treatment center is reasonably expected to start within two years, but only if any contingencies are either
deemed perfunctory or if the existence and nature of material contingencies is disclosed. However, we will not record
VPT orders if there are major financing contingencies or customer board approval contingencies pending. We perform
a quarterly review to verify that outstanding orders remain valid.

Currency exchange rates impacted the Oncology Systems gross orders within our European and Asia regions but did

not impact Oncology Systems gross orders on an overall international basis. Oncology Systems gross orders increased
5% on a constant currency basis in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 as compared to the year-ago period.
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For the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, the increase in North American Oncology Systems gross orders over the first
quarter of fiscal year 2013 was primarily due to increases in orders of software and software upgrades, hardware and
hardware upgrades, and an increase in service orders.

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, Oncology Systems gross orders in the international region decreased 2%,
compared to the year-ago period. The decrease in gross orders in the international region in the first quarter of fiscal
year 2014, over the year-ago period, was due to decreases in orders in Asia and rest of world region from hardware,
software and service, partially offset by an increase in orders in Europe. The decrease in orders in Asia was due to
slower purchasing activity, competitive pressure, and negative impact of currency fluctuations. The increase in orders
from Europe was primarily due to an increase in orders from service partially offset by lower hardware and software
orders. In Europe, TrueBeam orders as a percentage of high energy accelerators orders increased during the first
quarter of fiscal year 2014 as compared to the year-ago quarter.

On a constant currency basis, Oncology Systems gross orders in the international region decreased 1% in the first
quarter of fiscal year 2014, compared to the year-ago period.
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The trailing 12 months growth in gross orders for Oncology Systems at the end of the first quarter of fiscal year 2014
and at the end of the previous three fiscal quarters was : a 3% total increase, with a 0.4% increase in North America
and a 5% increase for the international region, as of December 27, 2013; a 2% total increase, with a 2% decrease in
North America and a 6% increase for the international region, as of September 27, 2013; a 4% total increase, with a
3% increase in North America and a 5% increase for the international region, as of June 28, 2013; a 2% total increase,
with a 2% increase in North America and a 2% increase for the international region, as of March 28, 2013. Consistent
with the historical pattern, we expect that Oncology Systems gross orders will continue to experience regional
fluctuations, even with an overall shift of orders towards international regions and emerging markets. In addition, the
availability of government programs that stimulate the purchase of healthcare products could affect the demand for
our products from period to period, and could therefore make it difficult to compare our financial results.

For the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, X-Ray Products gross orders decreased significantly due to decreases in both
North American and international gross orders, as compared to the first quarter of fiscal year 2013. In North America,
the decrease in gross orders in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 as compared to the year-ago period was primarily
due to the timing of orders. The decrease in international gross orders in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 as
compared for the year-ago period was primarily due to a decrease in gross orders in Asia and to a lesser extent due to
a decrease in gross orders in rest of world region, partially offset by an increase in gross orders in Europe. The
decreases in gross orders from Asia and rest of world region during the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, compared to
the respective year ago period, was primarily due to the timing of orders. During the first quarter of fiscal year 2014,
gross orders in Europe increased due to growth in X-ray tubes and X-ray flat panels products including growth in
certain new flat panel products. During the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, X-Ray Products gross orders decreased
due to decreases in orders of both X-ray tube products and X-ray flat panel products, compared to the year-ago period.

The increase in gross orders in the “Other” category in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 over the year-ago period was
primarily due to an increase in orders from SIP.

Orders in any period may not be directly correlated to the level of revenues in any particular future quarter or period
since the timing of revenue recognition will vary significantly based on the delivery requirements of individual orders,
acceptance schedules and the readiness of individual customer sites for installation of our products. Moreover, certain
types of orders, such as orders for software or newly introduced products in our Oncology Systems segment, typically
take more time from order to completion of installation and acceptance than hardware or older products. Because an
order for a proton therapy system can be relatively large, an order in one fiscal period will cause our gross orders to
vary significantly, making comparisons between fiscal periods more difficult. Orders and revenues for our SIP
products have been and may continue to be unpredictable as governmental agencies may place large orders with us or
with our OEM customers over a short period of time and then may not place any orders for a long time period
thereafter. Furthermore, bid awards in the VPT and SIP businesses may be subject to challenge by third parties, which
can make these orders more unpredictable than other products.
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Net Orders

The below table for net orders is provided for comparison purposes only. Net orders are defined as gross orders less
backlog adjustments.

Total Net Orders (by segment and region) Three Months Ended
Decembdd@dember 28, Percent

(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 Change
Oncology Systems:

North America $233.5 $ 208.6 12 %
Total International 256.1 268.3 ® %)
Total Oncology Systems $489.6 $ 476.9 3 %

X-Ray Products:

North America $212 $ 455 (53 %)
Total International 86.3 87.7 @ %)
Total X-Ray Products $107.5 $ 133.2 (19 %)
Other: $119 $ 9.1 30 %

Total Net Orders: $609.0 $ 619.2 2 %)

Backlog

Backlog is the accumulation of all gross orders for which revenues have not been recognized and are still considered
valid. Backlog also includes a small portion of billed service contracts that are included in deferred revenue.
Including the $92 million VPT backlog, our backlog at December 27, 2013 was $2.8 billion, which was a decrease of
1% over the backlog at December 28, 2012. Our Oncology Systems backlog at December 27, 2013 was 2% higher
than the backlog at December 28, 2012, which reflected an 11% increase for the international region and a 6%
decrease for North America.

We perform a quarterly review to verify that outstanding orders in the backlog remain valid. Aged orders that are not

expected to be converted to revenues are deemed dormant and are reflected as a reduction in the backlog amounts and
net orders in the period identified. Backlog adjustments are comprised of dormancies, cancellations, foreign currency

exchange rate and other adjustments. In the first quarter of fiscal years 2014 and 2013, our backlog adjustments were

$46.4 million and $32.5 million, respectively.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is the measurement of our ability to meet potential cash requirements, including ongoing commitments to

repay borrowings, acquire businesses or make other investments or loans, repurchase shares of VMS common stock
and fund continuing operations and capital expenditures. Our sources of cash have included operations, borrowings,
stock option exercises and employee stock purchases and interest income. Our cash usage is actively managed on a

daily basis to ensure the maintenance of sufficient funds to meet our needs.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The following table summarizes our cash and cash equivalents:

December 27, September 27, Increase
(In millions) 2013 2013 (Decrease)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 971 $ 1,118 $ (147 )
42
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Our cash and cash equivalents decreased $147 million from $1,118 million at September 27, 2013 to $971 million at
December 27, 2013. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 was primarily
due to $156 million of cash used for the repurchase of shares of VMS common stock, $25 million used for repayments
under our term loan facility, $24 million used for purchases of property, plant, and equipment, $10 million used to
fund a portion of our loan commitment to CPTC for financing the construction and initial operation period of the
Scripps Proton Therapy Center, and $8 million used to satisfy employee tax withholding requirements for employees
who tendered VMS stock upon vesting of restricted common stock and restricted stock units. These decreases were
partially offset by $43 million of cash generated from operating activities and $31 million of cash provided by stock
option exercises and employee stock purchases.

At December 27, 2013, we had approximately $175 million, or 18%, of total cash and cash equivalents in the United
States. Approximately $796 million, or 82%, of total cash and cash equivalents was held abroad and could be subject
to additional taxation if it were repatriated to the United States. As of December 27, 2013, most of our cash and cash
equivalents that were held abroad were in U.S. Dollars and were primarily held as bank deposits. We have used our
credit facilities to meet our cash needs from time to time and expect to continue to do so in the future. Borrowings
under our credit facilities may be used for working capital, capital expenditures, permitted VMS stock repurchases,
acquisitions and other lawful corporate purposes.

Cash Flows
Three Months Ended
December 27 December 28,
(In millions) 2013 2012
Net cash flow provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 43 $ 72
Investing activities 36 ) 24 )
Financing activities (154 ) 1
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents — 1
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $(147 ) $ 50

Our primary cash inflows and outflows for the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, as compared to the first quarter of
fiscal year 2013, were as follows:

In the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, we generated net cash from operating activities of $43 million, compared to
$72 million in the first quarter of fiscal year 2013. The $29 million decrease in net cash from operating activities
during the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 compared to the first quarter of fiscal year 2013 was driven primarily by a
net change of $30 million in operating assets and liabilities (working capital items) and a decrease of non-cash items
of $2 million, partially offset by an increase in net earnings of $3 million.
The major contributors to the net change in working capital items in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 were
accrued expenses and other liabilities, inventories, accounts receivable, and accounts payable as follows:
Accrued expenses and other liabilities decreased $25 million primarily resulting from a decrease in accrued
compensation and benefits due to timing of compensation payments.
Inventories increased $24 million due to anticipated customer demands for products in fiscal year 2014 in Oncology
Systems, X-Ray Products, and VPT.
Accounts receivable increased $19 million primarily due to higher revenues and the timing of collections.
Accounts payable decreased $11 million primarily due to the timing of payments.
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We expect that cash provided by operating activities will fluctuate in future periods as a result of a number of factors,
including fluctuations in our operating results, timing of product shipments and customer acceptance, accounts
receivable collections, inventory management, and the timing and amount of tax and other payments. For additional
discussion, please refer to the “Risk Factors” in Item 1A.
We used $36 million for investing activities in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, compared to $24 million used in
the first quarter of fiscal year 2013. During the first quarter of 2014, we used $24 million for purchases of property,
plant and equipment, and $10 million to fund a portion of our loan commitment to CPTC. During the first quarter of
fiscal year 2013, we used $20 million for purchases of property, plant and equipment and contributed $2 million to the
deferred compensation plan trust account.
43
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Financing activities used net cash of $155 million in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 compared to providing net
cash of $1 million in the first quarter of fiscal year 2013. During the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, we used $156
million for the repurchase of VMS common stock, $25 million for repayments under our term loan facility and $8
million to satisfy employee tax withholding requirements for employees who tendered shares of VMS common stock
upon vesting of restricted common stock and restricted stock units. These uses were partially offset by $31 million of
proceeds from employee stock option exercises and employee stock purchases and $4 million in excess tax benefits
from share-based compensation. During the first quarter of fiscal year 2013, we received $59 million of proceeds
from employee stock option exercises and employee stock purchases, $45 million of net borrowings under our credit
facilities and $5 million in excess tax benefits from share-based compensation. These amounts were nearly fully offset
by the use of $104 million to repurchase VMS common stock and $4 million to pay employees’ taxes withheld and
paid in connection with the vesting of restricted stock and restricted stock units.

We expect our capital expenditures, which typically represent construction and/or purchases of facilities,
manufacturing equipment, office equipment and furniture and fixtures, as well as capitalized costs related to the
implementation of software applications, will be approximately 2.6% of revenues in fiscal year 2014. As further
described under “Contractual Obligations,” we had loaned $74.0 million (including accrued interest) to CPTC as of
December 27, 2013, and we expect CPTC to continue to draw down the loan facility, under which we have committed
to loan up to $115.3 million to CPTC during the construction and initial operation period of the Scripps Proton
Therapy Center through fiscal year 2014.

On August 27, 2013, we entered into a credit agreement (as amended to date, the “2013 Credit Agreement”) with certain
lenders and Bank of America (“BofA”) as administrative agent. The Credit Agreement provides for (i) a five year term
loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to $500 million (the “2013 Term Loan Facility”) and (ii) a five-year
revolving credit facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to $300 million (the “2013 Revolving Credit Facility”
and, collectively with the Term Loan Facility, the “2013 Credit Facility”’). The Revolving Credit Facility also includes a
$50 million sub-facility for the issuance of letters of credit and permits swing line loans of up to $25 million. Under

the 2013 Credit Agreement, we have the right to make (i) up to two requests to increase the aggregate commitments
under the Term Loan Facility by an aggregate amount for all such requests of up to $100 million and (ii) up to three
requests to increase the aggregate commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility by an aggregate amount for all
such requests of up to $200 million, provided that, in each case, the Lenders are willing to provide such new or
increased commitments and certain other conditions are met. We may prepay, reduce or terminate the commitments
without penalty. The 2013 Credit Facility contains provisions that limit our ability to pay cash dividends.

Borrowings under the 2013 Term Loan Facility accrue interest either (i) Based on a Eurodollar Rate, as defined in the
Credit Agreement (the “Eurodollar Rate”), plus a margin of 1.00% to 1.25% based on a leverage ratio involving funded
indebtedness and EBITDA or (ii) based upon a base rate of (a) the federal funds rate plus 0.50%, (b) BofA’s
announced prime rate, or (c) the Eurodollar Rate plus 1.00%, whichever is highest, plus a margin of 0.00% to 0.25%
based on the same leverage Ratio, depending upon instructions from us. Borrowings under the 2013 Revolving Credit
Facility accrue interest either (i) based on the Eurodollar Rate plus a margin of 1.25% to 1.50% based on a leverage
ratio involving funded indebtedness and EBITDA or (ii) based upon a base rate of (a) the federal funds rate plus
0.50%, (b) BofA’s announced prime rate, or (c) the Eurodollar Rate plus 1.00%, whichever is highest, plus a margin of
0.25% to 0.50% based on the same leverage ratio, depending upon instructions from us. At December 27, 2013,
borrowings under the 2013 Term Loan Facility totaled $475 million with a weighted average interest rate of 1.29%.

At December 27, 2013, there was no amount outstanding on the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility.

The 2013 Credit Agreement contains affirmative and negative covenants applicable to us and its subsidiaries that are
typical for credit facilities of this type, and that are subject to materiality and other qualifications, carve-outs, baskets

and exceptions. We have also agreed to maintain certain financial covenants including (i) a maximum consolidated
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leverage ratio, involving funded indebtedness and EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax and depreciation and
amortization), and (ii) a minimum cash flow coverage ratio. We were in compliance with all covenants under the 2013
Credit Agreement during the first quarter of fiscal year 2014.

In addition, our Japanese subsidiary (“VMS KK”) has an unsecured uncommitted credit agreement with Sumitomo
Mitsui Banking Corporation that enables VMS KK to borrow and have outstanding at any given time a maximum of 3
billion Japanese yen (the “Sumitomo Credit Facility”). In March 2013, the Sumitomo Credit Facility was extended. The
Sumitomo Credit Facility will expire on April 5, 2014. Borrowings under the Sumitomo Credit Facility accrue interest
based on the basic loan rate announced by the Bank of Japan plus a margin of 0.5% per annum. As of December 27,
2013, there was no outstanding balance under the Sumitomo Credit Facility.

See Note 7 “Borrowings” to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion regarding the 2013
Credit Facility and the Sumitomo Credit Facility.
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As at December 27, 2013, we had $6.3 million of a term loan outstanding, which is included in current maturities of
long-term debt on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet. This interest rate on the loan is 6.7% and the principal
amount of the loan is payable in fiscal year 2014.

Our liquidity is affected by many factors, some of which result from the normal ongoing operations of our business
and some of which arise from uncertainties and conditions in the United States and global economies. Although our
cash requirements will fluctuate as a result of the shifting influences of these factors, we believe that existing cash and
cash equivalents and cash to be generated from operations and current or future credit facilities will be sufficient to
satisfy anticipated commitments for capital expenditures and other cash requirements for at least the next 12 months
and into the foreseeable future. We currently anticipate that we will continue to utilize our available liquidity and cash
flows from operations, as well as borrowed funds, to make strategic acquisitions, invest in the growth of our business,
invest in advancing our systems and processes, repurchase VMS common stock and fund our loan commitment to
CPTC.

Total debt as a percentage of total capital decreased to 22.1% at December 27, 2013 from 22.8% at September 27,
2013 primarily due to repayment of some of our borrowings under our 2013 Term Loan Facility. The ratio of current
assets to current liabilities decreased to 2.30 to 1 at December 27, 2013 from 2.33 to 1 at September 27, 2013.

Days Sales Outstanding

Trade accounts receivable days sales outstanding (“DSO”) were 94 days at December 27, 2013 compared to 87 days at
December 28, 2012. Excluding VPT, DSO were 84 days at December 27, 2013 compared to 81 days at December 28,
2012. Our accounts receivable and DSO are impacted by a number of factors, primarily including: the timing of
product shipments, collections performance, payment terms, the mix of revenues from different regions and the effects
of continued economic instability. As of December 27, 2013, approximately 5% of our accounts receivable balance
was related to customer contracts with remaining terms of more than one year.

Stock Repurchase Program

We repurchased a total of 2,000,000 shares of VMS common stock during the quarter ended December 27,
2013. During the quarter ended December 28, 2012, we repurchased a total of 1,500,000 shares of VMS common
stock.

In August 2012, the VMS Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of 8,000,000 shares of VMS common stock
from September 29, 2012 through December 31, 2013. As of December 27, 2013, no shares of VMS common stock
remained available for repurchase under this repurchase authorization. All shares that were repurchased have been
retired.

In November 2013, the VMS Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of an additional 6,000,000 shares of VMS
common stock from December 30, 2013 through December 31, 2014. Stock repurchases under the November 2013
authorization may be made in open market purchases, in privately negotiated transactions (including accelerated share
repurchase programs) or under Rule 10b5-1 share repurchase plans, and may be made from time to time in one or
more blocks. Shares will be retired upon repurchase. As of December 27, 2013, 6,000,000 shares of VMS common
stock remained available for repurchase under this repurchase authorization.

Contractual Obligations

Long-term income taxes payable includes the liability for uncertain tax positions (including interest and penalties) and
may also include other long-term tax liabilities. As of December 27, 2013, our liability for uncertain tax positions was
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$42.3 million, of which we do not anticipate any payment in the next 12 months. We are unable to reliably estimate
the timing of the future payments related to uncertain tax positions; we believe that existing cash and cash equivalents
and cash to be generated from operations and current or future credit facilities will be sufficient to satisfy any payment
obligations that may arise related to our liability for uncertain tax positions.

As further described in Note 15, “Variable Interest Entity” of the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements, we participate, through our Swiss subsidiary, in a $165.3 million loan facility to CPTC, under which we
committed to loan up to $115.3 million, to finance the construction and start-up operations of the Scripps Proton
Therapy Center. As of December 27, 2013, we had loaned $74.0 million (including accrued interest) to CPTC, and we
expect CPTC to continue to draw down this facility during the construction and initial operation period through fiscal
year 2014. We expect to use our cash abroad to meet funding requirements under this loan facility. We may sell all or
a portion of our participation in this loan facility before the end of the drawdown period in 2014. Upon the sale of all
or a portion of this facility, we will not be required to make further loan advances for the portion of the facility that is
sold.
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In April 2012, VMS entered into a strategic global partnership with Siemens AG (“Siemens”) through which, among
other things, we and Siemens will collaborate to develop interfaces that will enable our ARIA oncology information
system software to connect with Siemens linear accelerators and imaging systems. Under the agreement establishing
this collaboration, we committed to make certain payments, including up to $10 million in fixed fees and $20 million
in license fees, in the event that certain product development milestones are achieved. We will also pay for additional
licenses beyond minimum quantities set forth in the agreement. We expect that these interfaces will be
commercialized as part of our ARIA oncology information system offering to customers. The Company made fixed
fees payments to Siemens of $2.0 million during the three months ended December 27, 2013 and as of December 27,
2013 had accrued $0.5 million of the fixed fees under the terms of the agreement. As of December 27, 2013, no
amount related to the achievement of product development milestones was payable under this agreement.

During the three months ended December 27, 2013, VMS entered into an amended agreement with dpiX LLC (“dpiX”),
and other parties that, among other things, provides us with the right to 50% of dpiX’s total manufacturing capacity
produced after January 1, 2014. The amended agreement requires us to pay for 50% of the fixed costs (as defined in

the amended agreement), as determined at the beginning of each calendar year. As of December 27, 2013, we did not
have any fixed cost commitments related to this amended agreement. The amended agreement will continue unless

the ownership structure of dpiX changes (as defined in the amended agreement).

Except for the change in the outstanding balance under our term loan facility and the other items discussed above,
there has been no significant change to the other contractual obligations we reported in our 2013 Annual Report.

Contingencies
Environmental Remediation Liabilities

For a discussion of environmental remediation liabilities, see Note 9, “Commitments and Contingencies—Environmental
Remediation Liabilities™ of the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, which discussion is
incorporated herein by reference.

Other Matters

From time to time, we are a party to or otherwise involved in legal proceedings, claims and government inspections or
investigations and other legal matters both inside and outside the United States, arising in the ordinary course of our
business or otherwise. Such matters are subject to many uncertainties and outcomes are not predictable with

assurance. See Note 9, “Commitments and Contingencies—Other Matters” of the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements, which discussion is incorporated herein by reference.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In conjunction with the sale of our products in the ordinary course of business, we provide standard indemnification of
business partners and customers for losses suffered or incurred for property damages, death and injury and for patent,
copyright or any other intellectual property infringement claims by any third parties with respect to our products. The
terms of these indemnification arrangements are generally perpetual. Except for losses related to property damages,
the maximum potential amount of future payments we could be required to make under these arrangements is
unlimited. As of December 27, 2013, we have not incurred any significant costs since the spin-offs to defend lawsuits
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or settle claims related to these indemnification arrangements. As a result, we believe the estimated fair value of these
arrangements is minimal.

We have entered into indemnification agreements with our directors and officers and certain of our employees that
serve as officers or directors of our foreign subsidiaries that may require us to indemnify our directors and officers and
those certain employees against liabilities that may arise by reason of their status or service as directors or officers,
and to advance their expenses incurred as a result of any legal proceeding against them as to which they could be
indemnified.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements
a) New accounting updates recently adopted

In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) amended ASC 210, “Balance Sheet,” enhancing
disclosure requirements about the nature of an entity’s right to offset and related arrangements associated with its
financial instruments and derivative instruments. The new guidance requires the disclosure of the gross amounts

subject to rights of set-off, the amounts offset in accordance with the accounting standards followed, and the related

net exposure. This guidance became effective for us beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014. As a result of

the application of this accounting standard update, we have provided additional disclosures in the notes to the

condensed consolidated financial statements. The adoption of this amendment concerns disclosure only and did not

have an impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2013, the FASB issued an accounting standard update to require reclassification adjustments from other
comprehensive income to be presented either in the financial statements or in the notes to the financial statements.
This accounting standard update became effective for us beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014. As a result
of the application of this accounting standard update, we have provided additional disclosures in notes to the
condensed consolidated financial statements. The adoption of this amendment did not have an impact on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to three primary types of market risks: credit risk, foreign currency exchange rate risk and interest rate
risk.

Credit Risk and Counterparty Risk

We are exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by counterparties on the foreign currency forward
contracts used in hedging activities. These counterparties are large international and regional financial institutions and
to date, no such counterparty has failed to meet its financial obligation to us under such contracts. We are also
exposed to credit loss in the event of default by CPTC, the obligor under the loan facility in which we are participating
to finance the construction and start-up of the Scripps Proton Therapy Center. In addition, cash and cash equivalents
held with financial institutions may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limits or similar
limits in foreign jurisdictions. We also may need to rely on the credit facility described below under “Interest Rate
Risk.” Our access to our cash and cash equivalents or ability to borrow could be reduced if one or more financial
institutions with which we have deposits or from which we borrow should fail or otherwise be adversely impacted by
conditions in the financial or credit markets. Conditions such as those we experienced as a result of the economic
downturn of 2008 and accompanying contraction in the credit markets heighten these risks. Concerns over continued
economic instability, including the sovereign debt and banking crises in Europe, could make it more difficult for us to
collect outstanding receivables and could adversely impact our liquidity.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk
As a global entity, we are exposed to movements in foreign currency exchange rates. These exposures may change
over time as business practices evolve. Adverse foreign currency rate movements could have a material negative

impact on our financial results. Our primary exposures related to foreign currency denominated sales and purchases
are in Europe, Asia, Australia and Canada.
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We have many transactions denominated in foreign currencies and address certain of those financial exposures
through a risk management program that includes the use of derivative financial instruments. We sell products
throughout the world, often in the currency of the customer’s country, and may hedge certain of these larger foreign
currency transactions when they are not transacted in the subsidiaries’ functional currency or in U.S. Dollars. The
foreign currency sales transactions that fit our risk management policy criteria are hedged with forward contracts. We
may use other derivative instruments in the future. We enter into foreign currency forward contracts primarily to
reduce the effects of fluctuating foreign currency exchange rates. We do not enter into forward contracts for
speculative or trading purposes. The forward contracts range from one to thirteen months in maturity.

We also hedge the balance sheet exposures from our various foreign subsidiaries and business units. We enter into
foreign currency forward contracts to minimize the short-term impact of currency fluctuations on assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar functional currency.
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The notional values of our sold and purchased foreign currency forward contracts outstanding as of December 27,
2013 were $446.3 million and $53.0 million, respectively. The notional amounts of forward contracts are not a
measure of our exposure. The fair value of forward contracts generally reflects the estimated amounts that we would
receive or pay to terminate the contracts at the reporting date, thereby taking into account and approximating the
current unrealized and realized gains or losses of the open contracts. A move in foreign currency exchange rates
would change the fair value of the contracts, and the fair value of the underlying exposures hedged by the contracts
would change in a similar offsetting manner.

Interest Rate Risk

Our market risk exposure to changes in interest rates depends primarily on our investment portfolio and short-term
borrowings. Our investment portfolio consisted of cash and cash equivalents and a short-term investment as of
December 27, 2013. The principal amount of cash and cash equivalents at December 27, 2013 totaled $971 million
with a weighted average interest rate of 0.14%. At December 27, 2013, our short-term investment represented a loan
of $74.0 million (including accrued interest) to CPTC, which bears interest at LIBOR plus 6.25% per annum with a
minimum interest rate of 8.25% per annum.

The 2013 Credit Facility, which includes the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility and the 2013 Term Loan Facility, allows
us to borrow up to a maximum amount of $300 million under the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility and $500 million
under the 2013 Term Loan Facility. We secured a portion of the 2013 Credit Facility with a pledge of 65% of the
voting shares that we hold in Varian Medical Systems Nederland B.V., a wholly-owned subsidiary.

Borrowings under the 2013 Term Loan Facility accrue interest either (i) based on a Eurodollar Rate, plus a margin of
1.00% to 1.25% based on a leverage ratio involving funded indebtedness and EBITDA or (ii) based upon a base rate
of (a) the federal funds rate plus 0.50%, (b) BofA’s announced prime rate, or (c) the Eurodollar Rate plus 1.00%,
whichever is highest, plus a margin of up to 0.25% based on the same leverage ratio, depending upon instructions
from the Company. Borrowings under the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility accrue interest either (i) based on the
Eurodollar Rate plus a margin of 1.25% to 1.50% based on a leverage ratio involving funded indebtedness and
EBITDA or (ii) based upon a base rate of (a) the federal funds rate plus 0.50%, (b) BofA’s announced prime rate, or
(c) the Eurodollar Rate plus 1.00%, whichever is highest, plus a margin of 0.25% to 0.50% based on the same
leverage ratio, depending upon instructions from the Company.

In addition, the Sumitomo Credit Facility allows us to borrow up to a maximum amount of 3 billion Japanese Yen.
Borrowings under the Sumitomo Credit Facility accrue interest based on the basic loan rate announced by the Bank of
Japan plus a margin.

We are affected by market risk exposure primarily through the effect of changes in interest rates on amounts payable
under our revolving credit facility and term loan facility. As of December 27, 2013, there was no amount outstanding
under our revolving credit facility. As of December 27, 2013, borrowings under the 2013 Term Loan Facility totaled
$475 million with a weighted average interest rate of 1.29%. If the amount outstanding under our term loan facility
remained at this level for an entire year and interest rates increased or decreased by 1%, our annual interest expense
would increase or decrease, respectively, by an additional $5 million. See a detailed discussion of our credit facilities
in Item 2, “MD&A — Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

In addition, we had $6.3 million of an unsecured term loan outstanding at December 27, 2013 that carried a weighted
average fixed interest rate of 6.7% with principal payments due in fiscal year 2014. To date, we have not used
derivative financial instruments to hedge the interest rate of our investment portfolio, short-term borrowings or
long-term debt, but may consider the use of derivative instruments in the future. The estimated fair value of our
unsecured term loan approximated the principal amount reflected above based on the maturity of this financial
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instrument.

The estimated fair value of our long-term debt at December 27, 2013, approximates its carrying value because the
term loan is carried at a market observable interest rate that resets periodically.

The fair value of our loan to CPTC was $74.0 million at December 27, 2013, which was estimated based on the

income approach by using the discounted cash flow model with key assumptions that include discount rates
corresponding to the terms and risks associated with the loan to CPTC. In addition we do not increase the fair value
above its par value as ORIX Capital Markets LLC (“ORIX”), the loan agent, has the option to purchase this loan from us
under the original terms and conditions at par value.

Although payments under certain of our operating leases for our facilities are tied to market indices, these operating
leases do not expose us to material interest rate risk.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a)Disclosure controls and procedures. Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in the Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”))
required by Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(b) or 15d-15(b), our principal executive officer and principal financial
officer have concluded that as of the end of the period covered by this report, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective to ensure that information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in
Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms, and include controls and procedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us in such reports is accumulated and communicated to our management,
including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

(b)Changes in internal control over financial reporting. There were no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II
OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are subject to various legal proceedings and claims that are discussed in Note 9, “Commitments and Contingencies”
to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, which discussion is incorporated by reference into this item.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The following risk factors and other information included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and in our 2013
Annual Report should be carefully considered. Although the risk factors described below are the ones management
deems significant, additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we presently deem less
significant may also impair our business operations. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business,
operating results, and financial condition could be adversely affected.

IF OUR PRODUCTS AND PRODUCT LINES FAIL TO CONTINUE TO MEET CUSTOMER DEMANDS, OUR
PRODUCTS MAY BECOME LESS USEFUL OR OBSOLETE AND OUR OPERATING RESULTS WILL
SUFFER

We believe that IMRT, including volumetric modulated arc therapy, and IGRT have become accepted standards for
treatment in the radiation oncology market. Demand for our IMRT and IGRT products have been the drivers for our
gross orders and revenues in Oncology Systems and, because of the significance of Oncology Systems, in our business
in general. We have introduced products such as TrueBeam, a line of linear accelerators for radiotherapy and
radiosurgery, and UNIQUIE, a less complex, low-energy linear accelerator for the more price sensitive emerging
markets, to meet the evolving needs of our IMRT and IGRT customers. We believe TrueBeam is a valuable tool for
clinicians in the fight against cancer and will stimulate faster replacement of older systems in our installed base. We
also believe that our RapidArc products for volumetric modulated arc therapy are a significant advance in IMRT
treatments and can help drive longer term demand for our linear accelerators and IMRT- and IGRT-related products.
Orders for these products and products lines have contributed greatly to our orders and revenue growth and are keys to
our future success. If our customers do not purchase these products or if future studies call into question the
effectiveness of these or our other IMRT or IGRT products (including other volumetric modulated arc therapy
products) or show negative side effects, or if other more effective technologies are introduced, our gross orders,
revenues and financial results could suffer. As more institutions buy or upgrade to achieve IMRT and IGRT
capabilities, the market for these products (including volumetric modulated arc therapy products) may become
saturated. Alternatively, the marketplace may conclude that functions and features of our products should no longer be
an element of a generally accepted diagnostic or treatment regimen. If this occurs, the market for our products may be
adversely affected and they may become less useful or obsolete.

Our X-Ray Products business sells products primarily to a small number of imaging system OEM customers who use
our products in their medical diagnostic and industrial imaging systems. To succeed, we must provide products that
meet customer demands for product quality, superior technology and product performance at a competitive cost. If we
are unable to continue to innovate our X-ray technology and anticipate our customers’ demands in the areas of cost,
quality, technology and performance, then our customers may purchase from other tube or panel manufacturers
(including the in-house operations of some of these customers), which would negatively impact this business.
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In both the Oncology Systems and X-Ray Products businesses, and in our other product lines, we may be unable to
accurately anticipate changes in our markets and the direction of technological innovation and demands of our
customers. Our competitors may develop products or processes that are superior to, or more cost efficient than, what
we can then offer. If this occurs, the market for our products may be adversely affected and our products may become
less useful or obsolete. Any development adversely affecting the markets for our products would force us to reduce
production volumes or to discontinue manufacturing one or more of our products or product lines and would reduce
our revenues and earnings.
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OUR SUCCESS DEPENDS ON THE SUCCESSFUL DEVELOPMENT, INTRODUCTION AND
COMMERCIALIZATION OF NEW GENERATIONS OF PRODUCTS AND ENHANCEMENTS TO OR
SIMPLIFICATIONS OF EXISTING PRODUCT LINES

Rapid change and technological innovation characterize the markets in which we operate. Our Oncology Systems
products often have long development and government approval cycles, so we must anticipate changes in the
marketplace, in technology and in customer demands. Our success depends on the successful development,
introduction and commercialization of new generations of products, treatment systems and enhancements to and/or
simplification of existing product lines. Our Oncology Systems products, including products such as EDGE"dnd
TrueBeam, are technologically complex and must keep pace with, if not be superior to, the products of our
competitors. Our X-Ray Products business must also continually improve products at competitive costs. We are
investing in long-term growth initiatives, such as development of our SIP and VPT businesses, and expect that we will
need to invest more to develop and commercialize new products and technology for these businesses. Accordingly,
many of our products may require significant planning, design, development and testing, as well as significant capital
commitments, involvement of senior management and other investments on our part. In addition, because of the large
footprint and high price of many proton therapy systems, including ours, there is increasing demand for development
of a smaller, more compact proton therapy system. Other companies currently offer smaller, less expensive proton
therapy systems, and our ability to compete with these companies may depend on our ability to timely develop new
technologies to reduce the size and price of our system or provide additional features and functionality that our
competitors do not.

We may need to spend more time and money than we expect to develop and introduce new products or enhancements
and, even if we succeed, they may not be sufficiently profitable that we are able to recover all or a meaningful part of
our investment. Once introduced, new products may adversely impact orders and sales of our existing products, or
make them less desirable or even obsolete, and could adversely impact our revenues and operating results. In addition,
certain costs, including installation and warranty, associated with new products may be proportionately greater than
other products, and may therefore adversely affect our gross and operating margins. If we are unable to lower these
costs over time, our operating results could be adversely affected. Compliance with regulations, competitive
alternatives, and shifting market preferences may also impact our success with new products or enhancements.

Our ability to successfully develop and introduce new products and product enhancements and simplifications, and the
revenues and costs associated with these efforts, are affected by our ability to:

properly identify customer needs;
prove the feasibility of new products;
limit the time required from proof of feasibility to routine production;
timely and efficiently comply with internal quality assurance systems and processes;
limit the timing and cost of regulatory approvals;
accurately predict and control costs associated with inventory overruns caused by phase-in of new products and
phase-out of old products;
price our products competitively and profitably;
manufacture, deliver and install our products in sufficient volumes on time, and accurately predict and control costs
associated with manufacturing, installation, warranty and maintenance of the products;
appropriately manage our supply chain;
manage customer acceptance and payment for products;
manage customer demands for retrofits of both new and old products;
and
anticipate and compete successfully with competitors.
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Furthermore, we cannot be sure that we will be able to successfully develop, manufacture or introduce new products,
treatment systems or enhancements, the roll-out of which involves compliance with complex quality assurance
processes, including the Quality System Regulation (“QSR”) of the FDA. Failure to complete these processes timely and
efficiently could result in delays that could affect our ability to attract and retain customers, or could cause customers

to delay or cancel orders, causing our revenues and operating results to suffer.
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New products generally take longer to install than well-established products. Because a portion of a product’s revenue
is generally tied to installation and acceptance of the product, our recognition of revenue associated with new products
may be deferred longer than expected. In addition, even if we succeed in our product introductions, potential
customers may not decide to upgrade their equipment, or customers may delay delivery of some of our more
sophisticated products because of the longer preparation and renovation of treatment rooms required. As a result, our
revenues and other financial results could be adversely affected.

MORE THAN HALF OF OUR REVENUES ARE INTERNATIONAL, AND ECONOMIC, POLITICAL AND
OTHER RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH INTERNATIONAL SALES AND OPERATIONS COULD ADVERSELY
AFFECT OUR SALES OR MAKE THEM LESS PREDICTABLE

We conduct business globally. Our international revenues accounted for approximately 61% and 57% of revenues
from continuing operations during the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 and 2013, respectively, and approximately 57%,
56% and 55% during fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. As a result, we must provide significant service
and support globally. We intend to continue to expand our presence in international markets and expect to expend
significant resources in doing so. We cannot be sure, however, that we will be able to meet our sales, service and
support objectives or obligations in these international markets, or recover our investments. For example, we have
aligned our resources to support sales and marketing efforts in emerging markets. Our future results could be harmed
by a variety of factors, including:

currency fluctuations;

the lower sales prices and gross margins usually associated with sales of our products in the international region, in
particular emerging markets;

the longer payment cycles associated with many foreign customers;

difficulties in interpreting or enforcing agreements and collecting receivables through many foreign country’s legal
systems;

changes in the political, regulatory, safety or economic conditions in a country or region;

the imposition by foreign countries of additional taxes, tariffs or other restrictions on foreign trade;

the longer period in the international region from placement of any order to revenue recognition;

any inability to obtain export licenses and other required export or import licenses or approvals;

failure to comply with export laws and requirements, which may result in civil or criminal penalties and restrictions
on our ability to export our products, particularly our industrial linear accelerator products;

failure to obtain proper business licenses or other documentation, or to otherwise comply with local laws and
requirements regarding marketing, sales, service or any other business we conduct in a foreign jurisdiction, which
may result in civil or criminal penalties and restrictions on our ability to conduct business in that jurisdiction; and
the possibility that it may be more difficult to protect our intellectual property in foreign countries.

Although our orders and sales fluctuate from period to period, in recent years our international region has represented
a larger share of our business. The more we depend on sales in the international region, the more vulnerable we
become to these factors.

As of December 27, 2013, 82% of our cash and cash equivalents were held abroad. If these funds were repatriated to
the United States, they could be subject to additional taxation and our overall tax rate and our results of operations
could suffer.

Our effective tax rate is impacted by tax laws in both the United States and in the countries in which our international
subsidiaries do business. Earnings from our international region are generally taxed at rates lower than U.S. rates. A
change in the percentage of our total earnings from the international region, or a change in the mix of particular tax
jurisdictions within the international region could cause our effective tax rate to increase or decrease. Also, we are not
currently taxed in the United States on certain undistributed earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries. These earnings
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could become subject to incremental foreign withholding or U.S. federal and state taxes should they either be deemed
or actually remitted to the United States, in which case our financial results would be adversely affected. In addition,
there have been proposals that would significantly change U.S. taxation of U.S.-based multinational corporations.
Although we cannot predict whether or in what form Congress would enact any such proposals, legislation of this type
could negatively impact our effective tax rate and adversely affect our financial results.
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OUR RESULTS HAVE BEEN AND MAY CONTINUE TO BE AFFECTED BY CONTINUING WORLDWIDE
ECONOMIC INSTABILITY

Since fiscal year 2008, the global economy has been impacted by a number of economic factors, including the
sequential effects of the subprime lending crisis; the credit market crisis; collateral effects on the finance and banking
industries; volatile currency exchange rates and energy costs; concerns over the downgrade of the sovereign debt of
the United States and several European countries; continued sovereign debt and banking system uncertainties in
Europe and other foreign countries and concerns regarding recession in Europe and the directions of the Chinese and
United States economies. In many markets, these conditions have shrunk capital equipment budgets, slowed
decision-making, made financing for large equipment purchases more expensive and more time consuming to obtain,
and made it difficult for our customers and our vendors to accurately forecast and plan future business activities and
reduced their confidence. This, in turn, has caused our customers to freeze, delay or dramatically reduce purchases and
capital project expenditures. Project delays may continue, particularly as they relate to large scale or government
projects, which may be affected by austerity measures. Alternatively, in the past, some countries have adopted and
may in the future adopt government stimulus programs to revitalize their economies and improve healthcare and
medical services. The availability of stimulus programs in the future could positively affect our results in one period
and adversely affect our results in other periods, making it difficult for investors to compare our financial results
between fiscal periods. Weak economic recovery may also disrupt supply if vendors consolidate or go out of business.
As with our customers and vendors, these economic conditions make it more difficult for us to accurately forecast and
plan our future business activities. Continued economic uncertainty may also affect our service business, as customers’
constrained budgets may result in pricing pressure, extended warranty provisions and even cancellation of service
contracts.

In addition, concerns over continued economic instability, including the sovereign debt and banking crises in Europe,
could make it more difficult for us to collect outstanding receivables. Historically, our business has felt the effects of
market trends later than other sectors in the healthcare industry, such as diagnostic radiology, and we may experience
the effects of any economic recovery later than others in the healthcare industry. A continued weak or deteriorating
healthcare market would inevitably adversely affect our business, financial conditions and results of operations.

WE FACE SIGNIFICANT COSTS IN ORDER TO COMPLY WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS APPLICABLE
TO THE MANUFACTURE AND DISTRIBUTION OF OUR PRODUCTS, AND FAILURE OR DELAYS IN
OBTAINING REGULATORY CLEARANCES OR APPROVALS, OR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH
APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS COULD PREVENT US FROM DISTRIBUTING OUR PRODUCTS,
REQUIRE US TO RECALL OUR PRODUCTS AND RESULT IN SIGNIFICANT PENALTIES

Our products and those of OEMs that incorporate our products are subject to extensive and rigorous government
regulation in the United States. Compliance with these laws and regulations is expensive and time-consuming, and
failure to comply with these laws and regulations could adversely affect our business. Furthermore, public media
reports on misadministrations of radiotherapy in patients and focus on the role of the FDA in regulating medical
devices has led to increased scrutiny of medical device companies and an increased likelihood of enforcement actions.

U.S. laws governing marketing a medical device. In the United States, as a manufacturer and seller of medical devices
and devices emitting radiation or utilizing radioactive by-product material, we and some of our suppliers and
distributors are subject to extensive regulation by federal governmental authorities, such as the FDA, the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission (“NRC”) and state and local regulatory agencies, such as the State of California, to ensure the
devices are safe and effective and comply with laws governing products which emit, produce or control radiation.
These regulations govern, among other things, the design, development, testing, manufacturing, packaging, labeling,
distribution, import/export, sale and marketing and disposal of our products.
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Unless an exception applies, the FDA requires that the manufacturer of a new medical device or a new indication for
use of, or other significant change in, existing currently marketed medical device obtain either 510(k) pre-market
notification clearance or pre-market approval (“PMA”) before it can market or sell those products in the United States.
Modifications or enhancements to a product that could significantly affect its safety or effectiveness, or that would
constitute a major change in the intended use of the device, technology, materials, labeling, packaging, or
manufacturing process also require a new 510(k) clearance. Although manufacturers make the initial determination
whether a change to a cleared device requires a new 510(k) clearance, we cannot assure you that the FDA will agree
with our decisions not to seek additional approvals or clearances for particular modifications to our products or that
we will be successful in obtaining new 510(k) clearances for modifications. Obtaining clearances or approvals is
time-consuming, expensive and uncertain, and the PMA process is more complex than the 510(k) clearance process.
We may not be able to obtain the necessary clearances or approvals or may be unduly delayed in doing so, which
could harm our business. Furthermore, even if we are granted regulatory clearances or approvals, they may include
significant limitations on the indicated uses of the product, which may limit the market for the product. If we were
unable to obtain required FDA clearance or approval for a product or unduly delayed in doing so, or the uses of that
product were limited, our business could suffer. In the past, our devices have generally been subject to 510(k)
clearance or exempt from 510(k) clearance. However, there are some in the regulatory field who believe that certain
medical devices should be required to use the PMA approval process. If we were required to use the PMA process for
future products or product modifications, it could delay or prevent release of the proposed products or modifications,
which could harm our business.

Further, as we enter new businesses or pursue new business opportunities, such as radiosurgery and opportunities that
require clinical trials, we may become subject to additional laws, rules and regulations, including FDA rules and
regulations that are applicable to the clinical trial process and protection of study subjects. Becoming familiar with
and implementing the infrastructure necessary to comply with these laws, rules and regulations is costly. In addition,
failure to comply with these laws, rules and regulations could delay the introduction of new products and could
adversely affect our business.

Quality systems. Our manufacturing operations for medical devices, and those of our third-party manufacturers, are
required to comply with the FDA’s QSR, as well as other federal and state regulations for medical devices and
radiation emitting products. The FDA makes announced and unannounced periodic and on-going inspections of
medical device manufacturers to determine compliance with QSR and in connection with these inspections issues
reports, known as Form FDA 483 reports when the FDA believes the manufacturer has failed to comply with
applicable regulations and/or procedures. If observations from the FDA issued on Form FDA 483 reports are not
addressed and/or corrective action taken in a timely manner and to the FDA’s satisfaction, the FDA may issue a
Warning Letter and/or proceed directly to other forms of enforcement action. Similarly, if a Warning Letter were
issued, prompt corrective action to come into compliance would be required. Failure to respond timely to Form FDA
483 observations, a Warning Letter or other notice of noncompliance and to promptly come into compliance could
result in the FDA bringing enforcement action against us, which could include the total shutdown of our production
facilities, denial of importation rights to the U.S. for products manufactured in overseas locations, adverse publicity
and criminal and civil fines. The expense and costs of any corrective actions that we may take, which may include
products recalls, correction and removal of products from customer sites and/or changes to our product manufacturing
and quality systems, could adversely impact our financial results and may also divert management resources, attention
and time. Additionally, if a Warning Letter were issued, customers could delay purchasing decisions or cancel orders,
and we could face increased pressure from our competitors who could use the Warning Letter against us in
competitive sales situations, either of which could adversely affect our reputation, business and stock price.

In addition, we are required to timely file various reports with the FDA, including reports required by the medical

device reporting regulations (“MDRs”), that require that we report to regulatory authorities if our devices may have
caused or contributed to a death or serious injury or malfunctioned in a way that would likely cause or contribute to a
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death or serious injury if the malfunction were to recur. If these reports are not filed timely, regulators may impose

sanctions and sales of our products may suffer, and we may be subject to product liability or regulatory enforcement
actions, all of which could harm our business.
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If we initiate a correction or removal of a device to reduce a risk to health posed by the device, we would be required
to submit a publicly available Correction and Removal report to the FDA and in many cases, similar reports to other
regulatory agencies. This report could be classified by the FDA as a device recall which could lead to increased
scrutiny by the FDA, other international regulatory agencies and our customers regarding the quality and safety of our
devices. Furthermore, the submission of these reports have been and could be used by competitors against us in
competitive situations and cause customers to delay purchase decisions, cancel orders or adversely affect our
reputation.

Our medical devices utilizing radioactive material are subject to the NRC clearance and approval requirements, and
the manufacture and sale of these products are subject to extensive federal and state regulation that varies from state to
state and among regions. Our manufacture, distribution, installation and service (and decommissioning and removal)
of medical devices utilizing radioactive material or emitting radiation also requires us to obtain a number of licenses
and certifications for these devices and materials. Service of these products must also be in accordance with a specific
radioactive materials license. Obtaining licenses and certifications may be time consuming, expensive and uncertain.
In addition, we are subject to a variety of environmental laws regulating our manufacturing operations and the
handling, storage, transport and disposal of hazardous materials, and which impose liability for the cleanup of any
contamination from these materials. In particular, the handling and disposal of radioactive materials resulting from the
manufacture, use or disposal of our products may impose significant costs and requirements. Disposal sites for the
lawful disposal of materials generated by the manufacture, use or decommissioning of our products may no longer
accept these materials in the future, or may accept them on unfavorable terms.

The FDA and the FTC also regulate advertising and promotion of our products to ensure that the claims we make are
consistent with our regulatory clearances, that there are adequate and reasonable scientific data to substantiate the
claims and that our promotional labeling and advertising is neither false nor misleading in any respect. If the FDA or
FTC determines that any of our advertising or promotional claims are misleading, not substantiated or not permissible,
we may be subject to enforcement actions, including Warning Letters, and may be required to revise our promotional
claims and make other corrections or restitutions.

If we or any of our suppliers, distributors, agents or customers fail to comply with FDA, FTC and other applicable
U.S. regulatory requirements or are perceived to potentially have failed to comply, we may face:

adverse publicity affecting both us and our customers;
increased pressures from our competitors;
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